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Five-Year Financial Summary

TEHBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=T—HILLFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“2-hE T\ “F+F “FAF “T-0F

Profitability data BENYE
(RMB million) (AR¥EBER)

Revenue Wogs 169.7 164.5 125.5 215.8 1717
Gross profit EF 30.1 395 285 753 42.9
Loss for the year FREE (314.4) (275.3) (435.4) (317.6) (25.7)
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)

Gross profit margin EF= 17.7% 24.0% 22.7% 34.9% 25.0%
Net loss margin FERR (185.3)%  (167.4%  (346.9%  (147.2)% (15.0)%

Assets and liabilities data BEREERE

(RMB million) (AR®EETR)
Non-current assets FRBEE 153.9 4419 705.3 1,417.0 1,597.4
Current assets MEEE 120.5 128.8 110.4 117.6 870.4
Current liabilities mEaE 223.3 251.9 294.1 2248 821.7
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3.1 48 108.2 466.5 517.1
Shareholders' equity BELER 48.0 313.9 4134 843.4 1,129.0
Asset and working EEREEES

capital data g
Current asset ratios (%) MENE L E (%) 43.9% 22.6% 13.5% 7.7% 35.3%
Current ratios (time) MENLE(f3) 0.5x 0.5x 0.4x 0.5x 1.1x
Debt ratios (%) BELE(%) 82.3% 44.7% 49.0% 44.6% 54.2%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (“Baofeng Modern” or the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the financial report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

2019 was a challenging year to the Group, under the negative
impact of the trade dispute between the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) and the United States of America ("US"),
due to the effort of sales team, the Group still managed to
record an increase in revenue of approximately RMB5.2 million
or 3.2% to approximately RMB169.7 million during the year.
As some customers of the Original Equipment Manufacturer
("OEM") business changed to place orders to manufacturers in
Southeast Asia and India instead to the Group during the year,
the Group is forced to reduce its gross profit margin to retain
existing customers and acquire new orders. Therefore, the
gross profit margin of the Group during the year was reduced
to approximately 17.7%.

Looking ahead to 2020, it is expected that the outbreak of
the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic together with
the ongoing tension arising from the trade talks between the
PRC and the US will inevitably bring undesirable short-term
impact to operational and financial performance of the Group,
especially on the OEM business and the retail sales of slippers.
To alleviate the impact of the outbreak of the epidemic, the
Group will focus on the design and sales of indoor slippers and
will allocate more resources on online sales and local sales in
the PRC in 2020.

Besides, the Group would focus on uplifting our “Boree”
branded automated customized graphene-based slippers
("Graphene-based Slippers”) through cross-over collaboration
with cooperative stores by placing the new generation do-it-
yourself (“DIY") automated vending system. This cross-over
cooperation can penetrate and expand the PRC market rapidly
and most important of all, can foster the popularity of our
brand. However, due to the impact of the outbreak of the
epidemic, the launch of the new generation of DIY automated
vending system would be delayed to June 2020 and the
number of DIY automated vending system installed would be
substantially reduced. As a result, the sales of Graphene-based
Slippers would be significantly lower than our original plan.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

For other graphene application products, the Group is focused
on the development for air purifier and sterilizer for household
as there is a strong demand in the public for air purifier and
sterilizer due to the outbreak of the epidemic. Hopefully,
we can diversify our products to include both large-scale air
conditioning system and household air purifier and sterilizer in
the coming years.

After paying continuous effort and capital investment in
the past few years, the Group gradually transformed from a
traditional manufacturing company to a material technology
company and started to diversify our business to environmental
protection and energy related field. Considering the above, the
Group set up a carbon-based energy storage batteries research
and development line in the first half of 2019. The Group
targets to set up a production line in the coming year and
commence mass production by the end of 2020. The Group
aims to produce low cost and long useful life carbon-based
energy storage batteries including energy storage batteries for
solar power stations and grid systems, and batteries for electric
vehicles. After the scale expansion, the Group would be able
to enter the energy storage industry, which would become the
driving force of higher profit growth for the future.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

Zheng Jingdong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Under the negative impact of the trade dispute between the
PRC and the US, due to the effort of sales team, the Group
still recorded an increase in revenue of approximately RMB5.2
million or 3.2% to approximately RMB169.7 million (2018:
RMB164.5 million) during the year.

As some customers of the OEM business changed to place
orders to manufacturers in Southeast Asia and India instead
to the Group during the year, the Group is forced to reduce
its gross profit margin to retain existing customers and acquire
new orders. Therefore, the gross profit margin of the Group
during the year was reduced to approximately 17.7% (2018:
24.0%).

During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB314.4 million (2018: RMB275.3 million),
which was mainly attributable to (i) amortisation of
intangible assets of approximately RMB52.7 million (2018:
RMB77.6 million) and impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately RMB234.3 million (2018: RMB195.1 million);
(i) share-based payment expenses of approximately RMB5.3
million (2018: RMB15.2 million) in relation to the share options
granted by the Company on 10 December 2015, 24 June
2016, 16 December 2016 and 19 June 2018; (iii) impairment
loss on assets held for sale of approximately RMB3.0 million
(2018: Nil); net-off by (iv) the fair value gain on provision for
contingent consideration at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") of approximately RMB4.7 million (2018: RMB43.5
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt %5 0 R

Revenue by Product Category RERERNBENKES
Increase/
2019 2018  (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB'000 % change
1,
—E-hFE —T-)N\#F OB
AR®BTR ARETT %EH)
Revenue (Boree Products) W (EAMER) 2,721 3,463 21.4)%
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) W (ARFEEM) 4,024 4,510 (10.8)%
Revenue (OEM Business) Iz (OEMZETE) 162,942 156,507 41%
Revenue (Total) sk (#%8) 169,687 164,480 3.2%

Boree Products BEARER

Revenue from Boree Products decreased by 21.4% to
approximately RMB2.7 million during the year (2018: RMB3.5
million) because of the decrease of online sales.

Graphene-based Products

Revenue of Graphene-based Products amounted to
approximately RMB4.0 million (2018: RMB4.5 million) during
the year. As the wireless connection issue of the third-
generation DIY automated vending system, which restricts
the choice of locations, can only be alleviated or resolved
through 5G network services, the management of the Group
decided to focus on the development of a new generation
of DIY automated vending system. The commissioning and
improvement of the new generation of DIY automated vending
system took longer than expected and due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic, the Group expected that the launch of
the new generation of DIY automated vending system will be
delayed to June 2020. As a result, revenue of Graphene-based
Products decreased during the year.

For other graphene application products, the Group has sent
samples of the graphene deodorizing and sterilizing chips for
air purifiers and air conditioners (“Sterilizing Chips”) to an
overseas well-known producer of air conditioning system for
testing and recognition. As some parameters did not meet
the required standard, our research and development team is
working on the modification and improvement of the samples
and expects to resend the samples for testing soon. As a result,
the mass production of the Sterilizing Chips was delayed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
OEM Business

Revenue from OEM business increased by 4.1% to
approximately RMB162.9 million during the year (2018:
RMB156.5 million) was mainly attributable to orders from new
customers due to effort of sales team.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses increased by
10.9% to approximately RMB11.1 million as compared with
that of last year (2018: RMB10.0 million), which accounted for
6.5% (2018: 6.1%) of the Group’s revenue. The increase was
mainly attributable to the allocation of additional resources to
retain existing customers and explore new customers by the
Group during the year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded a decrease of
approximately RMB11.0 million or 19.9% during the year
as compared with that of last year (2018: RMB55.0 million),
which was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in share-based
payment expenses of approximately RMB9.9 million in relation
to the share options granted by the Company; (ii) decrease of
impairment loss on trade receivables of approximately RMB4.2
million; net-off by (iii) increase in research and development
cost of approximately RMB2.5 million during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash outflow from operating activities
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB&.3 million
(2018: net cash inflow of approximately RMB9.3 million).
As at 31 December 2019, cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB4.1 million, representing a decrease of
80.5% as compared with the cash and bank balances as
at the end of last year (2018: RMB21.1 million). As at 31
December 2019, around 44.1% and 49.1% of the Group’s
cash and bank balances were denominated in US dollars and
Renminbi respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the short
term borrowings of the Group were approximately RMB114.2
million (2018: RMB123.1 million). All loans were denominated
in Renminbi, with fixed interest rates and repayable within one
year.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group was
466.4% (2018: 80.9%). Gearing ratio was calculated as total
debt divided by the total equity. Total debt refers to the total
liability minus the sum of tax payable, dividend payable and
deferred tax liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2019, there were 1,304,059,608 shares in
issue and the paid-up capital amounted to approximately
RMB86,758,000. During the year, the Company issued a total
of 182,800,000 shares to two independent subscribers at the
subscription price of HK$0.27 per subscription share. As at 31
December 2019, the Company had 1,486,859,608 shares in
issue and a paid-up capital of approximately RMB99,310,000.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the bills payables were secured
by a pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately RMB3.9 million (2018: Nil). As at 31 December
2019, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured by
a pledge of certain of the Group's leased properties and
leasehold lands (2018: buildings and land use rights) with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB6.1 million (2018:
RMB9.2 million) and approximately RMB26.2 million (2018:
RMB27.0 million) respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the sales of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.

Debt Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the debt ratio of the Group was
82.3% (2018: 44.7%). Debt ratio was calculated as total debt
divided by the total equity plus total debt. Total debt refers
to the total liability minus the sum of tax payable, dividend
payable and deferred tax liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of
approximately 740 employees (2018: 780 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2019,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB62,951,000 (2018: RMB71,111,000). The Group's
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 8 January 2011 to
motivate and reward its Directors and eligible employees.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New
Shares

Pursuant to the Company’s announcements dated 9 November
2018, 12 November 2018, 8 March 2019 and 29 May 2019,
Venus Capital Fund and Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang (“Mr. Chiu”),
the two independent subscribers, subscribed for a total of
182,800,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of US$0.01
each (the “Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.27 per
subscription share which were completed on 8 March 2019
(the "Subscription”). The closing market price was HK$0.33
per Share of the Company on the date on which the terms
of the Subscription were fixed. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription was approximately HK$49,356,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB43,175,000), and the net proceeds
(after deducting the relevant expenses incurred in the
Subscription) were approximately HK$49,136,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB42,982,000). The net subscription price,
after deducting relevant expenses, is approximately HK$0.27
per subscription share.

The Directors considered that the Subscription represented
an opportunity to raise additional funding for research and
development of carbon-based energy storage batteries in
order to develop new markets and new business, and provide
working capital to the Group to meet any financial obligations
of the Group.
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BEEENRR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New

Shares (continued)

The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2019 is

set out as follows:

MO (&)
REHROAEREFEAR (F)

R_ZE-NF+-_A=1+—HB FBHRA
FENBBEREIMNT

Amount Amount
of the net of the net
proceeds proceeds Balance of the
utilised utilised net proceeds
during the during the unutilised
Intended year ended year ended as at 31
use of the 31 December 31 December December
net proceeds 2018 2019 2019
Bz S
—E-N\F —E-NF i
+=A t=A —E-NF
=+—H =t+—H +=A
LEE tFE  =+-8
FBREFE CDHAMSNX CBAMER XBAMER
Nature E3=1 REMRZE THIFELE EHFEEE BIEES
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR
Research and development  #ff % i & F &=
of carbon application (KtzE1)
products (Note 1) 18,853 - 15,709 3,144
Settlement of payables EERNEARR
owing to Bluestone (F8)BRAA
Technologies (Cayman) (TER ) MEM
Limited (“Bluestone”) BB (ft7£2)
(Note 2) 8,678 - 8,678 -
General working capital —REEES® (F:3)
(Note 3) 15,451 540 14,911 -
Total: Bt 42,982 540 39,298 3,144
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B EREE)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New AEFROFFEREFTERR (&)
Shares (continued)
Notes: Bt &t -

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group’s production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,971,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,678,000) was changed to
“Settlement of payables owing to Bluestone” and approximately
HK$9,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,726,000)
was changed to “General working capital” respectively from
the original intended use for the “Research and development
of carbon application products” during the year. It is expected
that the remaining balance of the net proceeds allocated for the
“Research and development of carbon application products”
will be utilised in the financial year ending 31 December 2020.

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group’s production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,971,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,678,000) was changed from
“Research and development of carbon application products” to
“Settlement of payables owing to Bluestone” during the year
and was fully utilised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group’s production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB7,726,000) was changed from
“Research and development of carbon application products” to
“General working capital” during the year. The balance of the
net proceeds allocated for the “General working capital” was
fully utilised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CRRBRZBFEATE  AEBRTE
MATMS FESNEERINERREA
AEEBRITAEE AMAEER AR —
BKERMEE FEEASRERAK.
It TS B R 58 499,971,000 T (FEE
R4 A R #8,678,0007T) & 499,000,000
BT (HHERHARET,726,0007T) B #E
ERBRRFAND B BRANETE AR [T
WRERER|ZTAHKERNEANE
NPEIRI—REEES] -EHSET
[ 25 ik JE PR EE &R ) BUFR 1S SRTE R 58 8458
BREE_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—RHzZH
BEEANER-

CORRER BHEMAAME REBRE
FMATMS FENEERINERREA
AEEBRITAEE AMAEERAEY —
BCENMBEE IEEASRERAK.
It TS B R 58 499,971,000 7T (FEE
REARS,678,0007T ) K TE AR F
N [HERERERIEEAEERE
NEAMENFE] ZREREEZZF
—NEFE+_A=Z+—ALEFEERAC2HIE
}Eﬁ °

CORRER BHEMAAME REBRTE
MATS FESNEERINERREA
AEBRIAE AAEERBREY —
BCENMEE IEESRENRAK:
It » BT 18 FUIEF &8 £79,000,0008 7T (HHE
R AREET,726,00070) M E BB E
N [HERERERIEEA—KE
BES | - DREFI—REEES]INMAB
REFESRBEAEE_T-hF+=A
—t+—HLEFENEEZE&ER-
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BEEENWmR DM

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2020, it is expected that the outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic in the PRC together with the ongoing
tension arising from the trade talks between the PRC and
the US will inevitably bring undesirable short-term impact to
operational and financial performance of the Group, especially
on the OEM business and the retail sales of slippers.

Though the Group’s factories in Fujian Province have resumed
work since 10 February 2020, the Group expects that the
COVID-19 epidemic will result in late delivery of some
products. On the other hand, due to the continuous outbreak
of the epidemic in the US since March 2020, the Group's
major OEM customers in the US requested to postpone the
delivery time of some orders. Apart from stepping up the effort
to catch up with the original planned schedules, the Group
keeps close contact with our customers to strive for solutions.
Moreover, as the epidemic has bolstered the growing trend
of customers staying at home and going online, the Group
will focus on the design and sales of indoor slippers and will
allocate more resources on online sales and local sales in the
PRC in 2020 to alleviate the impact of the outbreak of the
epidemic.

As the wireless connection issue of the third-generation
DIY automated vending system, which restricts the choice
of locations, can only be alleviated or resolved through 5G
network services, the management of the Group decided
to focus on the development of a new generation of DIY
automated vending system. As the upgraded new generation
of the DIY automated vending system has the advantages of
simple installation, small size, low power consumption and
fast printing speed, which can reduce the distribution and
operation costs. By placing the new generation DIY automated
vending system in cooperative stores, we can provide
customers an interesting on-site customization DIY shopping
experience. This cross-over cooperation can penetrate and
expand the PRC market rapidly and most important of all, can
foster the popularity of our brand. In 2020, the Group would
focus on uplifting our “Boree” brand through this cross-over
collaboration but due to the impact of the outbreak of the
epidemic, the launch of the new generation of DIY automated
vending system would be delayed to June 2020 and the
number of DIY automated vending system installed would be
substantially reduced.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

For other graphene application products, the Group has
sent samples of the Sterilizing Chips to an overseas well-
known producer of air conditioning system for testing and
recognition. As some parameters did not meet the required
standard, our research and development team is still working
on the modification and improvement of the samples and
expects to resend the samples for testing soon. After receiving
the recognition, the Sterilizing Chips would be launched
in the overseas market for air conditioning system through
cooperation with this producer. Besides, due to the outbreak
of the epidemic, there is a strong demand in the public
for air purifier and sterilizer. The Group is focused on the
development for air purifier and sterilizer for household and
hopefully can diversify our products to include both large-
scale air conditioning system and household air purifier and
sterilizer.

After paying continuous effort and capital investment in
the past few years, the Group gradually transformed from a
traditional manufacturing company to a material technology
company and started to diversify our business to environmental
protection and energy related field. In light of the above, the
Group set up a carbon-based energy storage batteries research
and development line in the first half of 2019 and the first lot
of samples were developed and met all the required standards
after testing. The Group targets to set up a production line in
the coming year and commence mass production by the end
of 2020. The Group aims to produce low cost and long useful
life carbon-based energy storage batteries including energy
storage batteries for solar power stations and grid systems,
and batteries for electric vehicles. After the scale expansion,
the Group would be able to enter the energy storage industry,
which would become the driving force of higher profit growth
for the future.

BEEENWR DM
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TERERBHSE

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors
and each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

o Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
° Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

e Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
48 to 50 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings and the
annual general meeting (“AGM") held during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 are summarised as follows:

EEg(#)
RBE-T-—NF+ZA=+—HBILTHF
EFBETEZEERARRBFRE ([
RBAFRg WO FLEFERALT -

Number of
board meetings Number of AGM
attended/held in attended/held in

2019 2019
TE-AFHE ZEBE-hAFHE/
BITNESS BITHRR
BRARE BERKERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE 8/8 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung RFHRFEE 8/8 1/1
Non-Executive Director FBTES
Ms. LIN Weihuan WEBZ L 8/8 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BYKHTES
Directors

Ms. AN Na I+ 7/8 1/1
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e REIR 8/8 1/1
Mr. CHEN Shaohua PR A 2ESE A 8/8 1/1

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING OF THE COMPANY
SECRETARY

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary of the Company must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. The
company secretary, Mr. lIp Pui Sum, provided his training
records to the Company, indicating that he has taken no less
than 29 hours of relevant professional training by means of
attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
include the development and reviewing of policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is summarised below:

TEERERE

EERBE
EXQNBERTEEERRBRE (BFL
MRB M+ IDIMEEFEE) B
BHERBHEREABRIERLET
FIBELRMEERTE EBEEFLAERE
BEENEINIEFEEREE HIERER
HERARNEERESENRTERRERFM
(B RBEREBFALERERTA A
RERRARAREERERRETIEREDN
R

EENRKHEERERS

EREFHRDEFEFIRER IBE
REREMB R BREESENR
BATREFSEHIAFTENTR B
EAREAH MAEECE B2 ME
HRIZKBEABERE R RRIIEARE
EBREFEHBIBENENN T2 A
SEEFEE-

RBEE-FT-NFT_A=+—HL*F
B BEERXNERIERRESENT

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties
LEERERD
ESRENERE/
BE WAF bl
ERNER
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE v
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung REREE v
Ms. LIN Weihuan MEBL T v
Ms. AN Na Zif+ v/
Professor ZHAO Jinbao BERUR v/
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROEL A v

BERYE —T-hFFEH




Corporate Governance Report
TERERBHSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng Jingdong
has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors consider that vesting two
roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently
comprises 2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and
3 independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
strong independence element in its composition.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group’s strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na. Among them, Mr. Chen Shaohua
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and financial management expertise in compliance with the
requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles provide that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with
the Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange
website and the Company’s website at www.baofengmodern.
com. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2019. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 4 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

TEERERE

ERREBENHELEFBET

Members KB Attendance of Meeting
SRLERR

Mr. CHEN Shaohua PRAOZESE (BREESER)
(Chairperson of audit committee) 4/4
Professor ZHAO Jinbao IR 4/4
Ms. AN Na ZiP 2+ 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2019. The remuneration
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended 31
December 2019 to assess the performance of the executive
Directors, review and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Members KB Attendance of Meeting
EEHERBR

Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of T+ (FMEEESEF)
remuneration committee) 11
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e R 11
Mr. CHEN Shaohua BRAEE S A4 1/1
BIERFY —T-hEER




24

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRSE

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by

RIETEHEXEBASKE HE-_Z— L&
T+ A=+T—HUIEFEARARSHEREA

band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below: EMEHERWOT

Remuneration band (RMB) Number of individuals
HEE (ARY) A"
500,000 - 1,000,000 4
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended REEHE—_ZE—NLFEF+_A=+—HIF

31 December 2019 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(@]

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

develop, review and disclose the policy for nomination
of directors, as appropriate, in the Company’s corporate
governance report annually; and

to implement and review the board diversity policy
("Board Diversity Policy”).
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The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2019. The nomination
committee held 2 meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the AGM.

The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:

TEERKSE

—NF+-A=+—B R%%E8
EH-EBUFRTEFTHESREE (R
2EEEIF) ROERLERLIFL LA
KRR EEERBE-_T-NAF+_-AH
ST HLEVBFEAETTRMASE
UHEENZEREFTREEZSE BF
EZENRE RENREKARET IS
TEFENBEYM YHNBRAEFAE L

EREENESTTROIES

REZESHELEFBOT:

Members RE Attendance of Meeting
SRLHERBR

Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Chairperson of HeRZX (RELESTFFE)
nomination committee) 2/2
Mr. CHEN Shaohua BRAFESE A 2/2
Ms. AN Na T+ 2/2

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Group considered
the diversity of the Board members can be achieved through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates of the Board members will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination committee shall consider certain factors,
which are not exhaustive and the Board has discretion if
it considers appropriate, in assessing the suitability of the
proposed candidate regarding the appointment of directors or
re-appointment of any existing Board member(s).

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
nomination committee shall make reference to certain criteria
including reputation for integrity; accomplishment, experience
and reputation in the business and industry; commitment
in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
businesses of the Group; diversity policy of the Company; in
case of independent non-executive director, the independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and any
other relevant factors as may be determined by the nomination
committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.
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Nomination procedures
a) Appointment of new director

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The nomination committee may select candidates
for directorship from various channels, including but
not limited to internal promotion, re-designation,
referral by other member of the management
and external recruitment agents, and should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If an independent non-executive
director is to be appointed, the nomination
committee will also assess and consider whether
the candidate can satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the nomination committee should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The nomination committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable. Where the Board
proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

e the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive
director will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

RERF

TEERERE

a) ZAEFES

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REEEE IS BARES
PR IEIR A BEEE - BIEET
RA P EIET - BT KSR
R B RO IR IR
GREREEEHEENRS
RARE A B A EE (KR
)1 0 BRIE bR RS R IR
EA B ZEEARTA
BEAES  WRE BT
FEE EEEEENETRR
EEIREAZTTA FH BRI
HOB IR

B R — A Z EE BRI R
BN REBZBERREALT]
MEERBUIKREANZERE
= (WER) oI IR0 E £ X
o

REZBSHERENREEER
BAREEE - FREFERY
2H(mER) FEFEHN
BERAE LREREBEFEETRA
ITRBIUFRTES ARAKRR

38 T AT BE BT ) BB A
S HHBARM R XTI

e MUY EZBALHNR
B EFERREELK
2 AT H IR B A R Al A 58
RZBANLTBELALTH
REA

s MWMRBEREBUIENITES
HHEEEELR (KAL)
FHRARIMNES EFE
REBZBANTDAIRAR
HEEETESFEENR
A

BERYE —T-hFFEH




28

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBSE

e the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of
the Board.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the nomination committee should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

b)  Re-election of director at general meeting
(i)  The nomination committee should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of
the retiring director and his/her level of participation
and performance on the Board.

(i) The nomination committee should also review
and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above. If
an independent non-executive director is subject
to the re-election, the nomination committee will
also assess and consider whether the independent
non-executive director will continue to satisfy the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules.

(i) The nomination committee should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.
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The nomination committee will review the nomination policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the nomination
policy. The nomination committee will discuss any revisions to
the nomination policy that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’'s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.
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The Board has established a clearly defined scope of
activities, responsibility and authority for each department
and its management staff within the Group. The Group has
a defined goal for each department to accomplish. These
goals were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to
the management through the executive Directors, and will
be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and take any necessary actions for the
improvement of business activities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the Company's auditor, Confucius International
CPA Limited was RMB1,357,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy on 20 February 2019. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. Any declaration of final
dividends for the year will be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders. In proposing any dividend pay-out,
the Board shall take into account the following factors:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
— the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion

plans;

—  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;
— general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have impact on the business or

financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.baofengmodern.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, there is no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

Convening an EGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of
corporate activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.
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BRIR HERERBKSE

The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle of
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the environmental,
social and governance risks of the Group, formulating
environmental, social and governance strategies, ensuring
the establishment and maintenance of an effective internal
control system on environment, society and governance and
conducting regular analysis and independent assessment on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the aforementioned system
through internal audit functions.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report are the
information and data of the Group that originates in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management,
the 1SO14001 environmental management system has
been established and implemented since 2006, with
annual review supervised by third-party certification
institutions and regulatory authorities. The Group
formulates appropriate environmental management
operation control procedures, commits to environmental
protection through continuous enhancement on
production technology and product quality, introduction
and promotion of energy conservation, waste reduction,
clean production, improvement on pollution prevention
and control technology, and material recycling and reuse.
In 2019, the Group invested a total of approximately
RMB610,000 for energy saving, environmental
protection, and emission and waste reduction. The Group
adheres to green and low-carbon development principle,
protects the environment as its mission, and integrates
environmental protection with enterprise development.
The Group strictly follows relevant national environmental
laws and regulations to minimize the impact of
production and operating activities to the environment to
the greatest extent, strives to achieve resource recycling
and non-hazardous objectives during production and
operation process and continues to build a green and
harmonious environment.
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A.1 Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws
and regulations, and reduces the environmental
impact of emissions generated from the production
and operation process. The Group ensures that the
emissions generated from production and operation
activities are in compliance with national standards
and the requirements of local environmental
protection authorities of the PRC. In the meantime,
the Group formulates and implements daily
inspection of pollution treatment facilities,
and formulates monthly, quarterly and annual
maintenance plans to ensure emission treatment
facilities are under normal operation, so as to
reduce the impact of emissions on the environment.

As summarised in Table 1 below, the Group’s
emissions during the reporting period included:
greenhouse gas (“GHG") and waste water.

A1l BEHMER
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VA PEBEREERE IR
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RETERRESLRIERE
YHERE FERFERE
g URERBES R IERBETTIE

AR ERRENF
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RIEBRA  NEBOHERIE
S REREB(DEEREIM

BEK A TR —e

Table 1: Total emissions of the Group in 2018 and K AREF-_ZE-NEE_F
2019 fhiwwmi
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-\& ZE-hE —E-)N\F
Intensity* Intensity*
(Tonnes/ (Tonnes/
Emissions B Unit Efu Amount Amount RMB’000) RMB'000)
BRE* BE
\ (W, . (W8,
EHE HmE AR®TR) AR®ETRT)
GHG BERE
Direct emission ERE33
(Scope 1) (#EM)
Company car oil NEFR  Tonnes WA
consumption 25.52 30.09 0.0002 0.0002
Natural gas KRR Tonnes [ 1,241.89 1,927.86 0.0073 0.0117
Indirect emission I HE AT
(Scope 2) (&[E]2)
Externally- SNEES Tonnes R
purchased
electricity 2,768.69 3,605.98 0.0163 0.0219
Wastewater BEK Tonnes T 32,018.00 46,916.00 0.1887 0.2852

* The calculation for intensity is the emissions amount
divided by revenue in the Group’s reporting period.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019

* EFENFETASAEERSE
HA B B R LAY ER ©



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GHG Emission

Greenhouse gases included carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide, which were mainly
from externally-purchased electricity and fuel.
The Group is in compliance with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and other
relevant laws and regulations, recycling certain
particles generated during the production process
to minimize exhaust gas emission to the greatest
extent. The Group uses clean natural gas and has
installed exhaust gas treatment equipment on
production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion of
boilers and ensure the emission concentration meets
the standard stipulated in the “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”.

Although the Group recorded an increase in revenue
of approximately 3.2% during the year, the total
amount and intensity of GHG emission have shown
a downward trend. This is mainly due to the Group’s
continuous strengthening of overall control to avoid
unnecessary GHG emissions.

Wastewater

Wastewater generated from the production process
and daily domestic sewage from employees will
be collected for further processing. No sewage is
untreated or illegally released to external waters.
The related procedures are in compliance with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.
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Solid Wastes

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced by
the Group. To minimize the amount of solid waste
generated during the production process, the
Group strictly abides by the principles of recycling
and reuse, as well as the provisions of the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”. The Group carries out hazard elimination
treatment, classification and recycling on solid
wastes pursuant to the “Solid Waste Management
Operations Guide” of the Group, including (i)
recycling and reuse of grinding powder, scrap; (ii)
selling of cardboard boxes, paper products to other
paper mills for recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified
recycling of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.

Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with the
relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.
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A2. Use of Resources

Summarised in Table 2 below, the resources used by
the Group during the reporting period were energy,
water, paper and packaging materials.

Table 2: Total resources consumption of the Group

B-HERERKS

A2. ERFEHR
REBRBEHAMEADNE
TRAREIR K R A R B EM
BB TR Z -

KO AEE-_Z-N\EEK-F

in 2018 and 2019 —NFRERERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E2-nE ZEZ-N\F ZB-hEF CZIZT-)\F
Resources &R Unit B{Z Amount Amount Intensity* Intensity*
(Unit/ (Unit/
RMB’000) RMB'000)
BE g BE* mE
(BR/ARY (BE/ARE
Fr) )
Energy A
Direct consumption B H#E
Petrol R Litres AT 11,236.00 13,247.00 0.0662 0.0805
Natural gas ARR M AKX  568,067.00  881,848.00 3.3477 53614
Indirect consumption &I JE#E
Electricity EW)| Kwh TR 3,441,082.00 4,459,538.00 20.2790 27.1129
Water 7K Tonnes M8 32,617.00 48,398.00 0.1922 0.2942
Paper ok Tonnes  [E 1.85 2.67 0.0000 0.0000
Packaging BEME
By plastic BRHE Tonnes [ 8.99 12.32 0.0001 0.0001
By paper HoRE Tonnes [ 471.69 654.80 0.0028 0.0040

* The calculation for intensity is the resources
consumption amount divided by revenue in the
Group’s reporting period.

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as
much as possible during product development and
production process, constantly pursuing energy
conservation and emission reduction.

« BENHESRAREERS
5094 BB B A3 -

AEERNNEERMEMEE
Bz BRI A S BRNA
BIR - NEERERERERE -

BERYE —T-hFFEH




38

The Group has implemented “Green Procurement”
policy to actively encourage suppliers to establish
production management system with environmental
protection and energy saving, purchase
environmentally friendly raw materials in higher
priority through procurement mechanism and supply
chain management, so as to facilitate suppliers to
reduce waste of resources and pollution.

The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies and
advanced technologies to prevent wastage so as to
conserve energy and resources. Specific measures
include: (i) reduction of natural gas consumption
through the installation of boiler thermal oil
recycling pipeline for heat recycling and reuse; (ii)
reduction of hydraulic oil consumption by the use
of hydraulic oil precipitation; and (iii) reduction of
raw material input by recycling the grinding powder
of grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated routine
resource conservation measures include: (i) replacing
high energy-consumption equipment with the more
energy-saving one; (ii) turning off unnecessary
equipment, lighting and air conditioning not in use;
(iii) strengthening inspection and maintenance of
faucets, water pipes and water storage facilities and
other water supply systems to avoid any leakage;
and (iv) announcing company information in
electronic form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin)
if possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.

To meet the energy-saving and emission reduction
targets of the government, the Group reports
and evaluates energy-saving new technologies
and emission reduction, and develops energy
performance indicators to strictly control energy
consumption, improve and enhance energy
management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy saving
awareness among employees, so that the resources
can be used more efficiently.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The main environmental impact of the production
business is the use of boiler and electricity in its
manufacturing process. The operation of the boiler
and the use of electricity generate both direct and
indirect GHG emissions. To minimise the impact, the
production and operation sites of the Group have
been evaluated during the initial planning period in
respect of the relevant industrial land environment
and related regulations and the selected production
sites are located in the areas permitted by the local
government. During the production and operation
process, collection and treatment facilities are
installed for proper treatment of pollutants and
emissions in order to ensure meeting the standard
required by local regulations before discharge. The
Group also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures and
programs, including the prevention and control of
pollution and exhaust gas emission, sustainable
use of resources and ecological and environmental
protection, more active support and promotion of
social and environmental sustainable development.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully in
compliance with the relevant national laws and
regulations in respect of remuneration, compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversification, anti-
discrimination and other employee benefits and welfare.
The Group also regards employees as its most valuable
asset and strives to provide the competitive salaries,
welfare and working environment for them.

B1.

Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “The Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No arbitrary dismissal of an
employee is allowed; the rights and obligations
of both parties to the employment contract are
clearly stated, the legitimate rights of employees are
protected, in order to establish a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.
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The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment, network
recruitment in a fair and impartial way. The
Group provides employees with comprehensive
social security benefits, including basic salary,
pensions, incentive bonuses, medical insurance,
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund. The Group will also provide other
employee benefits depending on job nature,
including meals, uniforms and fully equipped
accommodation. The human resources department
of the Group conducts regular reviews and updates
on the relevant company policies from time to
time pursuant to the latest laws and regulations.
Employee performance appraisal, management
position promotion, and other company policies
are implemented to provide career development
path to employees like internal promotions, on
the job training. To attract high-quality talents and
retain outstanding employees, the Group launches
Share Option Scheme and timely conducts reviews
on salary with reference to market standards,
formulates competitive salary and bonus system,
and provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the grounds
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, family
status, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, ethnic background or any other non-
working related factors. Each newly-recruited
employee is required to sign a labour contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations of both the employee and the
employer, and all employees are entitled to
terminate the employment relationship with the
related employment company of the Group. The
entering, amendment, cancellation and termination
of the relevant employment contract are strictly in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRS

AEBEERRERE L85
B HEREEsERENUR
FREMFARBNEAEHE
BEEELKNOAT - AEBRET
RHTENLERERN B85
EARFHH ERE HEBES
BERRE LERRE £ERR
FEFEREE AEETERT
TEMERHEMEESRTN &
RER HRAREEENES
FoAKENANE RIS MK
BEFARIOERERRF RE
B ARIBER  LEEE TH
ML EEBAE T E A AR
M B TREAEE T RER
JIREREERRE - RRAS
EZATRBRBEFET K&K
B ERER S eSS
ZEHGREETH MR - HIE
BEBRFINFHFERRSHIE R
BEARR BRERRERE
HEABRF N R R FEOFHM SRR
o

AEEHEI-RRAC A
ETTERA/MRN Bk =R
o Filk o BIR RKEAR - ER
B BORRE REER
ST E M IE T FHRR A =
EXPRBAR - BUHARET
FERELDER PARTEE
TREXTETNEN BEHEE
%5 A B THA MK LEAR
SEEBERQFNERBR-
MHEREE RIS HF @
R 1B BARE T AR
RME



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B2. Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the health
and safety of employees and has obtained OHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System certification, Work Safety
Standardisation certification. The Group has set up
an occupational health and safety management
organisation and a safety production committee
and strictly abides by the relevant standards of
“Occupation Health and Safety Management
System” and “Basic Standard for Work Safety
Standardisation”. The Group also adheres to
the principles of safety production management
and formulates the regulatory system of safety
production management and operation rules for
all positions. The safety and health of employees
are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.
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To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment at all times, the Group regularly
provides various kinds of work protective gears to
employees in accordance with working requirements
of each position and supervises and educates them
to wear and utilize correctly; appoints responsible
staff for the safe production of each department
and implements various safety education; installs
dust removal and waste discharging devices on
facilities generating dust and exhaust gas; controls
noise transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees. Fire
safety inspection, training, and drills are regularly
organized to improve safety awareness and self-
protection of employees.

The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, to
build a safe working environment.

Development and Training

In respect of human resources training, the
Group provides employees with induction and
continuous training to promote their career
development. For newly-recruited employees,
the Group provides comprehensive orientation
training of corporate culture, operation processes,
work health and safety, management policies and
business development. The Group also encourages
employees to participate in on the job training and
provides appropriate subsidies to eligible employees.
Based on job nature, the Group offers trainings
of different types and levels to newly recruited
employees, junior supervisors, senior supervisors
and key personnel, like management and
production project training, aiming at constantly
improving the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.
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B4. Labour Standards

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism.
The employee manual stipulates that selected
candidates must meet the legal age. Before
confirming the employment, the human resources
department of the Group will require applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that they
are legally employed and fully in compliance with
the latest relevant laws and regulations prohibiting
child labour and forced labour. The Group also
conducts regular inspection and review of the
implementation of human resources policies to
eliminate child labour and forced labour.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and set reasonable
working hours and leaves for employees pursuant
to local employment ordinances and employment
contracts with employees. The Group has installed a
human resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working hours
and vacation dates. If overtime work is required,
employees may obtain appropriate overtime
payment or compensatory leave under the relevant
employment contract or labour legislation. To
prevent forced overtime work, overtime must be
agreed by employees voluntarily. During office
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within
the factory or office area (except prohibited special
areas), and it is not mandatory for employees to live
in the factory quarters.
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The Group attaches great importance to sustainable
and reliable supply chain to ensure sustainable
enterprise development. The Group has formulated
and implemented supplier management system.
Regarding supplier selection, the Group conducts
qualification inspection, factory visit and other
assessment processes on potential suppliers with
the principles of fairness, impartiality, openness
and honesty. Inspection areas include the
production capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety of the supplier.

In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and product
quality.
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B6. Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product safety
and did not recover any products due to product
safety and health reasons. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters related to products
sold during the year.
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B7.

T HERERRKSE

The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response to
the feedback of customers and instant response to
product inquiries.

The promotion activities of the Group’s products are
carried out by advertising agencies in accordance
with the Group’s policy of privacy, its business
strategy, and the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of integrity and
strictly abides by the provisions of the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the "Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “Interim Provisions on Banning of
Commercial Bribery” and other relevant laws and
regulations. The Group has formulated “Baofeng
Personnel Management Regulations” and other
related systems to standardise various business
activities. An internal monitoring system is set up
for strengthening anti-fraud, anti-extortion, anti-
corruption, anti-money laundering and bribery
supervision, while a reporting mechanism and
a reward and punishment committee are also
set up to strengthen management and promote
compliance, so as to prevent and eliminate fraud,
extortion, bribery and corruptions on various
aspects of operation and management. The
Group prohibits any acts of fraud, extortion,
corruption and bribery, prohibits employees from
taking advantages of their powers and duties
for corruption, embezzlement, encroachment
of corporate property, acceptance of bribes and
kickbacks, etc. Through various measures like
training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics and
conduct is formulated for the communication with
business partners, suppliers, customers, etc. and
employees are required to follow strictly.

Community Investment

In the meantime of corporate development, the
Group does not overlook the responsibility of a
citizen of the community, and actively participates
in social welfare activities, taking practical actions
to bear its due responsibility as a corporate citizen.
The Group engages in social welfare activities, such
as social welfare investment, community event
participation, school donation, schooling support
of employees’ children, charitable donations, active
participation in blood donations, condolence to
vulnerable groups, etc.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEEFK

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an executive Director
and the authorised representative under the Listing Rules.
He has been appointed as a Director since 21 July 2008. Mr.
Zheng has more than 10 years of experience in the slipper
business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a director of
Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co Ltd since 28 March 2007 and as
a director of BAOF International Limited since 21 July 2008.
He has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 10 May 2013.

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 50, has been appointed as
the executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules with
effect from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1991 and a degree of master in
Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales in 1996. He is qualified as a certified professional
marketer and has over 20 years of extensive experience in
business administration and marketing. Mr. Leung is the legal
representative of Bay Zu Precision Co., Ltd QtEFEEBRHL A
R 2 &) since November 2011 and resigned on 18 December
2018. Mr. Leung joined 2D Material Technology Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
chief executive officer in November 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 38, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over five years of experience in accounting.
She is now the sole director and sole shareholder of Total
Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”) which is principally
engaged in investment business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of B & T % 1 kx4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982 She has also been a vice president of 1t UREE)
M54t (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In August 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from B EEE EEEE
& 8@ (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2002. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from PEIL# T
¥ BT (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
PR RS A E: (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEEFK

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 53, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (B1%
FFK ) (previously known as China Central Radio and TV
University (R EEE R KE)), and obtained a bachelor's
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (3t 5 T A) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit
and tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and legal representative of auditing firm, tax
company, asset and property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 56, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 3 February
2015. Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology (Y% E8/& T ¥ K£) of the PRC and obtained a
bachelor of engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984
and a master’s degree in High Polymer Materials Engineering
in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained a doctor’s degree
in Engineering from Kyoto University in Japan in 1996. He
has been a professor of Physical Chemistry in the Xiamen
University (B F9X2) of the PRC since 2011. He has over 20
years of extensive experience in research and development
in the field of engineering and chemistry and was recruited
as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program of Global
Experts (B45N& X A A 5l#ETEl), also known as Thousand
Talents Program (7 A&TE!) in the PRC in 2011.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2019 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group always pays attention to environmental protection.
Details of the environmental policies and performance of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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EEEHS

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. During the year under review, the
Group considered the relationship with employees was good
and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of
raw materials and aiming at delivering products with high
quality to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have
a close and long term relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 75 to 204.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 90.4% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 47.2%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 44.2% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
26.8% of the total purchases for the year.

One of the five largest customers was RN & A5 E 77
RARRAR ("&£ KFK") in which Ms. Zhang Bihong (“Ms.
Zhang"), who holds approximately 6.78% of the Company’s
issued share capital, has equity interests in & A[5.

Except as described above, none of the Directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

e  Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Vice-chairman)

e Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

* Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and
(2), Mr. Chen Shaohua and Professor Zhao Jinbao shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM. Being eligible, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Professor Zhao Jinbao will offer themselves for
re-election as independent non-executive Directors at the
AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
48 to 50 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three-month notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved for transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
contract or arrangement during the year which is significant in
relation to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
had any material interest in business which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares:

Name of Director

BExps BOREENE

Capacity and nature of interest

EERFETHRAERKRD - HEE
RO REEEPNESZR AR

R-ZE—hAhF+_A=+—H EFBENEXK
RAEETBAEBRARR R EEE EE
(EERBHRBEGD ([FHFRKBEK
B 1) EBXVES) B B% 10« #8 B8 A% 10 K (& 4 3F
PR )VREES RS G EXVIETR
F8DEAME AR F) MR P AR 2 Mok
B (BREREFESRBEKROABIGEXHE
EESREBEANESZ AR ¢ (I)RIEE
% N B E GBI 35216 H 58 A % 6Pl i
KRR AT E KBRS ROAR 3 (i)
RiE _E R B 8R10FT S A IZE ST B A9 AR
TEAMEARRNR KRBT ER AR I
T

R4 K AHE R 60 ey

Number of Percentage of

Beneficial owner

BEx#EAA

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung
RFhEAE

Ms. LIN Weihuan (“Ms. Lin")@

MEELZL (Mt ])@ P2 1A B 9 #E 2

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Interest in controlled corporation

Shares/underlying  the Company’s
Shares (other than issued share
share options) held capital®
FERG HER
7 (BRELIN) (EERAREHT
®A RAB DD
6,000,000(L) 0.40%
233,155,792(L) 15.68%

RAEQRBBREPHER:
Percentage of
the Company'’s

Number of share issued share

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest options held® capital®
HEATERITR

EEps BORERME FEEREZE® B

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong Beneficial owner 10,500,000(L) 0.71%

BRREAE BB A

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung Beneficial owner 4,000,000(L) 0.27%

RFHELE BEaSBEAA
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Notes:

(1 The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019 (i.e. 1,486,859,608
shares).

(2) Ms. Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total
Shine is interested.

(3) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each of them under the Share Option
Scheme. Accordingly, each of them was regarded as interested
in the underlying Shares.

(4) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR
OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

All conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in the
principal amounts of HK$110,880,000 and HK$73,920,000
issued by the Company on 16 December 2015 and 2 February
2016 respectively were exercised on 7 December 2018. Details
of convertible notes of the Company are shown in note 27 to
the financial statements.

Details of share options of the Company are included in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below and also shown in note
32 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8 January
2011. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2019:

B ETE

ARRR-ZTE——F— N\ BEMERE
Bl BARETEMNFBENGE B R
RWFE32 »

TREBER - ZT-NF+_A=+—HE
P A AT 81T T &Y i R 7T (0 B e

Number of share options
BRegA
Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled ~ Forfeited asat31 Exercise price
Date of asat! duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exerdse pershare
grant”/ January 2019 year year year year 2019 period (HKS)  Notes
RoE-1E RoE-nE
-A-H TZAZt-R SR%R
Name or Category of particpants ~ $EANEZHEN BHAS WAGE ERRE  ERGE  EREE  EREN  HAGE RN (Bm) W
Executive Directors yfrgs
ZHENG JINGDONG g2% 1011202015 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 A 0.81
101272015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 B 0.81
101272015 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 ( 0.81
101272015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 D 081
101272015 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 t 0.81
19/6/2018 300,000 - - - - 300,000 P 0.54
19/6/2018 200,000 - - - - 200,000 0 0.54
LEUNG TSZ CHUNG 2Tk 1011202015 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 B 0.81
Sub-total Nt 14,500,000 - - - - 14,500,000
Employess 8 1011202015 9417,000 - - - - 9417,000 A 081
1011202015 13,356,000 - - - - 13,3%,000 B 081 3
1011202015 695,000 - - - - 695,000 ( 081
101122015 556,000 - - - - 556,000 D 081
101122015 556,000 - - - - 556,000 t 081
240612016 26,040,000 - - - - 26040000 f 067
2462016 17,440,000 - - - - 17,440,000 6 0.67
24061016 200,000 - - - - 200,000 H 067
24062016 160,000 - - - - 160,000 I 0.67
24162016 160,000 - - - - 160,000 J 0.67
161122016 75,000 - - - - 75,000 K 099 3
161202016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 L 09 X
161122016 125,000 - - - - 125,000 M 099 3d
161212016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 N 09 X
1611212016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0 09 X
19/6/2018 40,680,000 - - - - 40,680,000 P 054
19/6/2018 27,120,000 - - - - 27,120,000 0 0.54
Sub-total Nt 136,880,000 - - - - 136,880,000
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Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised ~ Cancelled ~ Forfeited asatdl Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise pershare
grant”” January 2019 year year year year 019 period? (HKS) ~ Notes
RZE-1% RZE-1%
-A-8 tZR=t-8 ERiT&E
Name or Category of partidpants ~ SEAN#ZIEH RUAH BAGE  EARE  EARE  FREE ERRM BAGR GREC (Bm) ME
Consultants B
24061016 19,620,000 - - - - 19,620,000 f 067 3
24161016 14,160,000 - - - - 14,160,000 G 067 3f
241612016 2,700,000 - - - - 2,700,000 H 067 3
24061016 2,160,000 - - - - 2,160,000 | 067 3f
24061016 2,160,000 - - - - 2,160,000 J 067 3f
161202016 1,350,000 - - - - 1,350,000 K 099
161202016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 L 099
161202016 2,250,000 - - - - 220,000 1 099
161202016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 N 099
161202016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 0 099
19562018 24,000,000 - - - - 24,000,000 P 054
19562018 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 Q 054
Sub-total NGt 89,800,000 - - - - 89,800,000
Total it 241,180,000 - - - - 41,180,000
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Notes: Bt :
1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date 1. & 15 E’\E%?Fi?‘iﬁ Bf-F-—a%+= A
of grant on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016, 16 December +H - == /\E/\ﬂ JrP_T] B
2016 and 19 June 2018 were HK$0.79, HK$0.69, HK$0.99 —AE+-A+AAR-T— /\i/\ﬂ
and HK$0.50 respectively. T BRI T E 5 R170.797% 7T ~0.69
7T~ 0.997% 7T & 0.5078 7T
2. The respective exercise periods of the share options granted 2. PR ES T T
are as follows:
A: From 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020; A: —E—RF+-_A+HEZ-ZZ
TE+—ANE:
B: From 10 December 2016 to 9 December 2020; B: —E—XFt+-At+HE=ZZE=
TEF+ZANB:
C: From 10 December 2017 to 9 December 2020; C: —E—+tF+-A+HE=ZZ=
TF+ZANR:
D: From 10 December 2018 to 9 December 2020; D: 2 N\F+ZA+HE=ZZZ
TFE+ZANA:
E: From 10 December 2019 to 9 December 2020; E: —E-NAF+-A+HE=Z=
TFE+—ANE:
F: From 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021; F: TE-RNENAZTHAEC
——®XAZ+=8:
G: From 24 June 2017 to 23 June 2021; G: TE—tFRNAZTHHEE=Z
——FXAZ-+=8:
H: From 24 June 2018 to 23 June 2021; H: ZE-N\FARAZTEHZEZ=Z
——FXAZ+=H:
From 24 June 2019 to 23 June 2021; : ZE-NFRAZTHEBAEC=ZZ
Z—FXA=+=8:
J; From 24 June 2020 to 23 June 2021; I TECEFRNACHTEBEECZS
——HFRXAZ-t+=8:
K: From 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021; K : TE-RET+ZA+RHEZZ
——F+ZATHEAB:
L: From 16 December 2017 to 15 December 2021; L: —E—+tF+_A+RHEZE
——&%+=ZA+HAaH:
M: From 16 December 2018 to 15 December 2021; M: ZE—A\F+_A+BHEZZ
——F+=A+HH:
N: From 16 December 2019 to 15 December 2021; N : —E-NFF+ZAt+AAHEZZT
——F+ZAT+HEAB:
0: From 16 December 2020 to 15 December 2021; O: TE-TEFF+-A+REHZE
——F+=RA+HAAB-
P: From 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023; and p: ZE-NFEXNA+HILARE=ZZ
—=FXRATNB K
Q: From 19 June 2019 to 18 June 2023. Q: ZE—NFAAt+ABAEZ=ZZE
—=FXA+TN\H-
The vesting period of the share options is from the date of ZEBEREN 3%%@2%5%?& HEIRRE
grant until the commencement of the exercised period. EIT{E AR A I
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6,800,000 share options were granted to two persons
who were employees of the Group and have become
consultants of the Group subsequently.

b. 30,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

C. 40,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

d. 50,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

e. 1,620,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

f. 2,160,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

g. 2,700,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

4. Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant
of the Company or its subsidiaries, at the time of exercise of
his or her share options.

5. The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERREEMATRARSG RE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EROPTHNESZEAE

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors ﬁé\:;ﬁfﬂﬁ_ﬂ—:ﬂ =t—8 %%%&
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons Z’S@aigﬁﬁf\éﬁﬁ_ﬂ ' DKTAT%%
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives (\%%gzﬁ@ﬂ*I%fjﬂ\(}\‘E\%ﬁ\\)%\ﬁﬁ
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have Tﬁiﬂ‘@ E?Hﬁﬁﬁp%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁgbﬁﬁ%«ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares *ET)\%%?%%&/H §1‘%1§U%XV?‘B$2&35?‘FE@
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the 1%X?§Fﬂ$@ﬂ?&§'§&%éﬂﬁﬁﬁk?§%&
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be %51'%155”%336{'%25 —?’/ﬁlﬁa’\j%ﬁaﬂﬁﬁkéﬁ
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 ARITAMEARRR S FOXRIAT -

of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as

follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and REOREBROPHERRKA:
underlying Shares:

Percentage of the

Capacity and nature of Number of Shares/ Company’s issued
Name interests underlying Shares share capital®®
HARRATE BT
=1 SO RERME B EEBRG B RAE 2 k0o
Mr. Sze Ching Bor (“Mr. Sze”) ® Interest in controlled 285,879,975 (L) 19.23%
corporation
SEIBREE (TRFEE])O PR SEE R R
Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping @ Spousal Interest 285,879,975 (L) 19.23%
BORSE £ Bt an
Best Mark International Limited Beneficial owner 240,720,365 (L) 16.19%
("Best Mark”) @ EalEA A
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Percentage of the

Capacity and nature of Number of Shares/ Company’s issued
Name interests underlying Shares share capital®®
HARATSET
£ SORERME B2, HHE R 0B B [Nl AL
Total Shine @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 15.68%
EmEAA
Ms. Lin @ Interest in controlled 233,155,792 (L) 15.68%
corporation
Mm@ Fr¥E &l A B A fE 2
Bluestone ® Beneficial owner 220,000,000 (L) 14.80%
BERO Enla A
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui ® Interest in controlled 220,000,000 (L) 14.80%
corporation
HEARE SO FryE &l A B R e
Mr. Chiu © Beneficial owner 102,000,000 (L) 6.86%
RS HE® EnlE A
Venus Capital Fund @ Beneficial owner 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
E=mEAA
Venus Capital Management Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
Company Limited © corporation

PAT4%E I K [ B #E 25

Ms. Zhang © Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
corporation
REEO FriZ s = B R s

HEEY —E-AFEHR O3
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Notes:

(8)

Mr. Sze is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Best Mark and Capital Vision International Limited (" Capital
Vision"). Best Mark and Capital Vision are wholly owned
and controlled by Mr. Sze and are interested in 240,720,365
Shares and 45,159,610 Shares respectively, representing
approximately 16.19% and 3.04%, respectively of the issued
Shares.

Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping, the spouse of Mr. Sze, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Sze's interests in the Company.

Best Mark is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze.

Total Shine is interested in 233,155,792 Shares. Ms. Lin,
who wholly owns and controls Total Shine, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Total Shine is interested.

Bluestone is interested in 220,000,000 Shares. Mr. Zhuang
Chaohui, who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Bluestone is interested.

Mr. Chiu has obtained share options granted by the Company
entitling him to subscribe for 20,000,000 Shares. Mr. Chiu
has also subscribed for 82,000,000 Shares pursuant to
the terms of the subscription agreement as detailed in the
announcements dated 9 November 2018, 12 November 2018
and 8 March 2019.

Venus Capital Fund has subscribed for 100,800,000 Shares
pursuant to terms of the subscription agreement as detailed
in the announcements dated 9 November 2018, 12 November
2018 and 8 March 2019.

Venus Capital Management Company Limited wholly owns
Venus Capital Fund and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Venus Capital Fund is interested.

Ms. Zhang, who wholly owns and controls Venus Capital
Management Company Limited, is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Venus Capital Management Company
Limited is interested.
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5 A B R A Best Mark & Capital
Vision International Limited ([ Capital
Vision | ) BT #5 B {0 &1 #E B # %5 © Best
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R AE 5 B #240,720,3650 B 5 K
45,159,6 100 I o i #E B #E 25 - 9 Bl 48
EREEITRNE16.19%%3.04% °

SEEREZEZCRFL LR RERLE
ERFARRZ e

Best MarkeR £ Sc E 2 B A STl o

Total Shine233,155,792 % % {7 7 #
EREm MLt (2EHA LZHTotal
Shine ) # 1% A M Total ShineFT# i 17/
HERER -

B4 12220,000,0000% 10 AR A HE 25 o
HeEfELE L (2 EHME RIEHER) W
7% RERFTHBRMDPEAERS-

HAEEBEIREARREIRTHBEBRE L
52 8#£20,000,0000% f% 19 © BB Jc £ IR IR
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RE82,000,000% f& 15 °

Venus Capital Fundi iR # R & 7 =%
ZHEF(HFBHERBBHAE-ZZT—N\F
+—AhR - ZZ—N\F+—A+=
BRk-ZZ-—NF=ZANBZAE)RE
100,800,0008% f& 17 ©

Venus Capital Management Company
Limited2 & # & Venus Capital Fund * %%
B BT Venus Capital Fund P ié ) o 4
A

REZ T2 EHEA RIEH Venus Capital
Management Company Limited * # 13 &
M Venus Capital Management Company

Limited P45 f& {0 o 8 B 1 5 o



(10)  The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019 (i.e. 1,486,859,608
shares).

(11)  The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares
or underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a share option scheme to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

(10) ZEPHLETIRER-_Z—LE+=
A=z+—HE®BTRMOEH (A
1,486,859,608f% ) 5t & -

(11 FEILIRRZA LR G SHE R
BEEFR -

B EXPBEEEN R_E-NF+ A
=t+—B BEFERARAEIBITBAEMR
TRABEFRMEMAL (EEFRAQRA TR
TTIRABRIN) SOXBEHA R R E
BBERBEES R ERGIEXVEEE2 N E3
RS I RNNGIE S §- PNt =9I 3 £ S
> REEIGPIE336GATFENE LM
B SNE AR B BB D RE
REHERIORE

BAEXS
FATET LR FEEARER S A
MBRERWMEISABEBENAEALRZA
FLETRAUNEVUAEARAEN [BER S
g HERERS] -

RENDRERE
READATHRO A AR R EEH
M RARERE ARELBASAFE
BATRR AR B EERI25%

FEA R
7R S B B 5 B BR T 2 A A B R B o R
B BIERENEE WHEFMESGTH

LA, L
/E\IE\ETJ-O

EEMemFHEE RS EAKENE
BRE AR RN AR TI5 A BUE
MELEZELARESTEIRE -

ARBIRMBIESE ABB R EFH
EFhOERER BREEFEIRN
BRI FE32 -

BERYE —T-hFFEH




66

Report of the Directors

EEEHS

AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited was appointed as auditor
of the Company on 13 February 2018 upon the resignation of
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited.

Confucius International CPA Limited will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHENG Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF BAOFENG MODERN
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 75 to 204, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Material uncertainty in relation to going concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 have been prepared
assuming that the Group will continue as a going concern.
We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB314,436,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB102,812,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s
arrangements to address the going concern issue are also
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

At 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of the
Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB44,784,000, net of allowance for credit losses of
approximately RMB7,986,000, which was material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The allowance
was assessed based on the expected credit loss model. The
assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables
involved significant management judgement and estimation
including their assessment of customers’ current financial
position and forward-looking information.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding of the Group’s procedures on
credit limits and credit periods given to customers with
the management;

o evaluating the design and implementation of controls
over the accounting process of allowance for credit
losses and evaluated management’s assumptions and
judgement by comparing to the historical collection
trends;

o checking the accuracy of preparation of the aging
analysis of trade receivables by customers by tracing the
data back to the source documents;

o checking on a sampling basis, the debtors’ historical
payment pattern and the bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the reporting period;

o checking on a sampling basis, the evidence including
correspondence with the debtors for the latest progress
of the outstanding amounts; and

e assessing the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a
sampling basis and reviewing the key assumptions used
to determine the expected credit losses, including both
historical and forward-looking information.

We found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the recoverability of trade
receivables were supportable by the credible evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

As set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2019, the Group has significant intangible
assets amounting to approximately RMB77,255,000
comprising (i) technology know-how of approximately
RMB61,000,000; (ii) 020 distribution vending system of
approximately RMB16,000,000 and (iii) capitalisation of
deferred development costs in relation to the research and
development of manufacturing and application technology of
graphene material on sterilizing chips, energy storage materials
for batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes
which are incurred in 2016 of approximately RMB255,000.

Management is required to carry out an impairment
assessment on these intangible assets at least annually.
Independent external valuations were obtained in order to
support management estimates. These assessments of the
recoverable amounts involved significant management's
assessment and judgement on the key assumptions used in
cash flow projections and profit forecasts based on financial
budgets approved by management, which is judgemental and
based on a number of assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
intangible assets included:

o evaluating the independent external valuers competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o assessing the valuation methodologies adopted by
management which are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements;

o evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions
used in the valuations based on our knowledge of the
business and industry including profit forecasts, cash flow
projections, discount rates, budgeted sales and gross
margin through assessing the cash generating unit's
past performance, management's expectation of the
market development and future 5 years’ financial budget
approved by the management;

o evaluating the potential impact of value-in-use based on
the reasonably possible change of the key assumptions;

o discussing with the management and the independent
valuation valuers engaged by the management to
understand the assumptions they used in building up the
cash flow projections;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
(continued)

e  challenging the assumptions used in business plans and
development plans adopted by the Group in relation to
the technology know-how and 020 distribution vending
system;

o reviewing the detailed analysis prepared by the
management for the deferred development costs
and testing the reconciliation of amounts reported to
accounting records; and

o discussing with the management about the nature
of work being completed for each product and their
assessment of the areas of judgement for each product,
in particular, the stage of technical development and
economic feasibility.

Based on our procedures described, we found the impairment
assessment on intangible assets to be reasonable.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, but does not
included the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary
Practising Certificate Number: PO1316

Hong Kong
30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt at AR®T T AR®ET T
REVENUE T 6 169,687 164,480
Cost of sales HER AN (139,568) (125,029)
GROSS PROFIT EF 30,119 39,451
Other net income and gains H A R U558 6 2,934 2,549
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment  $4& R RELE 2 EWE
loss) on trade receivables from sales SEFREREE
of goods # | CREER) 521 (3,718)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R D HERX (11,101) (10,013)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHF X (44,547) (51,264)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEN 18 (52,720) (77,640)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERE 18 (234,295) (195,120)
Impairment loss on assets held for sale BEAEEERERE 23 (3,000) -
Finance costs BE A A 7 (6,072) (5,862)
Fair value loss on convertible notes at A ERTAE R Z A%
fair value through profit or loss S WANSEIEEEPS 27 - (17,797)
Fair value gain on provision for BATETABREA
contingent consideration at fair value REBE2AFE
through profit or loss Was 29 4,769 43,533
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLATE B 8 (313,392) (275,881)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTig®i(F) M 11 (1,044) 553
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL RAREE A
COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR FABBERFR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HB AR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 (314,436) (275,328)
LOSS PER SHARE BREER 14
— Basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) (0.22) (0.25)
— Diluted (RMB) —EE(ARE) (0.22) (0.25)
Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the I BB ENGE MRS TRRMEE13 -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BARR R

As at 31 December 2019 R—-Z=F

—NWF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iz ARET T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER G 15 49,291 51,415
Right-of-use assets CREEE 16 27,351 -
Prepaid land lease payments AN itk 17 - 26,223
Intangible assets BVEE 18 77,255 364,246
153,897 441,884
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 29,367 40,556
Trade receivables FEWE Z IR 20 44,784 33,659
Prepayments, deposits and other TARHIE e R EAER A
receivables 21 38,394 7,480
Pledged deposits EERER 22 3,855 -
Cash and bank balances We MR 22 4,101 21,080
120,501 102,775
Assets classified as held for sale NEAEEEFENEE 23 = 26,000
120,501 128,775
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables N E SRR RENRE 24 56,856 46,806
Deposits received, other payables Biize - Hn A FIER
and accruals EETER 25 51,553 81,808
Short term borrowings RHEE 26 114,200 123,100
Lease liabilities HEERE 28 604 -
Income tax payable FEfT TS HiTE 100 200
223,313 251,914
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEREFE (102,812) (123,139)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 51,085 318,745
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+_-A=1+—H

2019 2018
—E-nE  —ENF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
JioFEa AR¥ETTT AREFT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HE&E 28 550 -
Provision for contingent consideration SA(C{B & 29 = 2,312
Deferred tax liability RIEFIESE 30 2,557 2,491
3,107 4,803
NET ASSETS EEFE 47,978 313,942

EQUITY Es

Share capital L& 31 99,310 86,758
Reserves fE (51,332) 227,184
TOTAL EQUITY MR 47,978 313,942

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 204 FISE204BEMGAUBRREESTS RN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —ZE-THF=FA=+HH#ENSZENZ I
directors on 30 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by: HATALTREREE
ZHENG Jingdong LEUNG Tsz Chung
BRR RF ¥
Director Director
= EE

HERY —2-nEEg [/
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaR2BX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

Statutory ~ Exchange  Capital Share

Share Share Contributed  surplus fluctuation redemption ~ options Accumulated Total Total
capital ~ premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reserve losses ~~ reserves equity
tERA  EXED EARE  BRE
Ra  RitEE EMER  QEE it it R ZHER REEE  REEE
Notes — RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W#E  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 31) (note 33()  (note 33(i)) ~ (note 33ii))
(K31) (W) (Was) (Kassii)
1 January 2018 (restated) H=%-NE--H
(E3)) 71609 41635 141376 95478 155 54 8284 (34235 30817 41146
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ EREER2ERR
for the year g - - - - - - - (5308 (275318 (275328
Fouitysetled share-based payments — RRIEEE
RbRERmN: 2 - - - - - - 1505 - 55 15205
Forfeiture of share options e b - - - - - - (1689 1,689 = =
Conversion of convertible notes BRARREE 15129 147490 - - - - - - 7490 162619
At 31 December 2018 and HZB-NF
1 January 2019 +ZR=t-BR
“E5-15-A-H 86,758 563815 141,376 95,478 155 54 41800  (615064) 227,184 313942
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ EREERZEER
for the year g - - - - - - - (314436)  (314436)  (314,436)
Equity-settled share-based payments o]
3 - - - - - - 5299 - 5299 5299
Completion of subscription of new shares i 12,55 30,621 - - - - - - 30,621 $311
At 31 December 2019 RR-1E
tZR=1-A 99310 594436 141,376 95,478 155 54 4709  (930400)  (51332) 47978
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt it AR®T ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Loss before tax BT AT E 1R (313,392) (275,881)
Adjustments for: T FIEFE -
Interest income FLEWA 6 (85) (61)
Interest expenses MERX 7 6,072 5,862
Depreciation of property, plant and Y B MR EITE
equipment 15 6,131 6,001
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 16 1,315 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TAR T A S 8
payments 17 - 731
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 18 52,720 77,640
Loss on disposals of items of HEWE - BE KR
property, plant and equipment FEBHEEEE 139 167
Impairment loss on intangible EmREEEREBE
assets 18 234,295 195,120
Impairment loss on assets held for FEGEEERMERE
sale 3,000 =
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ HERMELEZERKES
impairment loss on trade R OREEERE )
receivables from sales of goods BIEEE 20 (521) 3,718
Write-down/(reversal of write- FEWR, (MosEmE)
down) of inventories 166 (546)
Equity-settled share-based RIREEE RGN
payments BEREK 5,299 15,205
Fair value loss on convertible notes BRATEF ABR AR
at fair value through profit or loss BREE 2 A FEEBX 27 - 17,797
Fair value gain on provision for BRAFEFGTABR ZHA
contingent consideration at fair RERE 2 A FEKZE
value through profit or loss 29 (4,769) (43,533)
Operating cash flow before changes LEECFHRI KL
in working capital Hens (9,630) 2,220
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (Eh) 11,023 (3,783)
Increase in trade and bills receivables U E FERFR & R
il (10,604) (9,538)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERTERIE - e R E MR
deposits and other receivables FIE (G M), R (51) 2,841
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills FEE SRS &Fﬁﬁmﬁf
payables g,/ G 10,050 (1,195)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits B Wik ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ KIE
received, other payables and FEErERACRA), 18
accruals (8,083) 20,741
Cash (used in)/generated from KE (TR FiBE e
operations (7,295) 11,286
Interest received BEHFIE 85 61
Enterprise income taxes paid BRI EFEH (1,078) (2,043)
migsy —g-hrEss /O




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\&F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt et ARET AR®ET T
Net cash flows (used in)/generated RESEE (FTH),/ FiERE
from operating activities REFE (8,288) 9,304
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME WENMZRHEEE
and equipment 15 (4,203) (16,489)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWHE WEREBEEE
property, plant and equipment B iEe (8,638) =
Purchases and addition of intangible EN=PNE A=
assets 18 (24) (25)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWZE  BEMEKEEER
property, plant and equipment FriS5038 57 322
(Placement in)/withdrawal of pledged GEiil), R E & #1E
deposits (3,855) 2,127
Net cash flows used in investing REZEBFTRAESRETFE
activities (16,663) (14,065)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES &R
Proceeds from the issue of new shares BITHIRPT S 08 23,458 =
Deposits received for subscription of RRBE I B W BUR &
new shares = 19,715
Drawdown of new short term BT EEE
borrowings 26 114,200 123,100
Repayments of short term borrowings EBECHEE 26 (123,100) (117,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMERE (514) -
Interest paid 2 F B (6,072) (5,862)
Net cash flows generated from METHBRSREFH
financing activities 7,972 19,953
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBEEEUORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 1% 88 (16,979) 15,192
Cash and cash equivalents at FORERBRSEED
beginning of year 21,080 5,888
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRBAESEEY
END OF YEAR 4,101 21,080
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBEEBYERDIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTA R 4,101 21,080
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
as disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark"”), which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Sze Ching Bor.

DNAREH

BERFHBEERERERARAT AR
ADARREEEEMRINERE
ERE ARRGEMRHEEREEE
EHF MU NANF R ABER | —
BB - ARBIRORN - FT——F—
AZ+N AT ETBEBDREBES
RPABRAB(TERZATDER L -

ARARMEBER BT BT - HIY
BRAREEEBNFBRANGENE
MR T4 - FRARRBI RENBE R
(B AEE DN ETEEKHE L
BEAEE -

FEMBBREAARETAREEZ
5 B RARRZ LR -

ARREBEERE ARRMEEIER
UNCIDNES 4320 UNCIV=Yi =Y o o
STRBEZ#HS]) MM IABest
Mark International Limited([Best

Mark ]) o BB & IEHI A BSIBR T4

BERE —T-hFFEH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

The Group has applied new and amendments to
IFRSs and an Interpretation issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in
the current year:

P& R R R] B A4S 5T B R B 3 3R

2B ([ B PR Bt 75 3 o5 28

A1)

AEBEERAFEERAEAABEERES
AAEAEES((ERetERES
S )R EETR] R AEHE T BIFR B 7% e

SRR —ERE -

IFRS 16 Leases BRI R E Rl HE
165
IFRIC*-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax BIBR B FS S 2R PREREEAN
Treatments ZEZEERE WEE
2235%
Amendments to IAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment BR @t #ERIZE19 s EHE T b8
or Settlement SRUBETA) gEE
Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in R ETAERZE28 R E R RE
Associates and Joint SRUBETA) EhEIRE
Ventures s
Amendments to IFRS 9  Prepayment Features with BRI REYER] BEHBmEZIE
Negative Compensation FIFUEFTA) A& ZOEF 1
Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSs BRI RS YER] BB SRS
2015-2017 Cycle (1BETAN) Al —F—hF
E_T—+F
FHAE 2 o

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Standards Interpretation Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs and an Interpretation in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 16 superseded International Accounting
Standard (“IAS”) 17 Leases (“IAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("IFRSSs") (continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the
date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in IFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid
or accrued lease payments by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on lease-by-
lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease
contracts:

a) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

b) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

F& R R R] B ASAE 5T B PR B A 3R
o2 B ([ B PR Bt 5 i o 28
B D)

HECZESR

AEBREMAITEEE REAE
RER S ERE1 7RI AEEZ
B #O I8 P BB B 755 ¥ 5 22 R 5 16557 -
MHNERMARBRNBEEHEZA
# RN e AR ER - Bt - NEE
TEeEMTERERERBMAMEE
EZRH -

AR -F—NF—A—BHZKFIL
HIEMM B R REERFEEHNRE
BEEHERREBERM % REER
FIRMERERAEEZES -

EREBEA

N2 B B 5B W e R B B B A e e ZE B
F169 YR BXEBAH TN
F-A—BERRFATE-

R-ZZFE—NF—HF—B8 &BEHR
B B 75 s e YE I 55 1 65 C8(b) (i) i@ -
AEBBIRAENEEATEN KB
MEMZAZRZEEHEaE R
BRENMEEERFERABEE-R
BXEABSZ AR EEREIRE
mF R B RER A FEY -

KBRS E R BRI S HmEER£16
SRR N 2 RIERTEWTER  NEE
R RHEEAER T RIEER S5
ERF 17RO B RKEHERRER
EANEBZHERRUTATEE
TIE

a) EETpEHEREXER AR
12EARNERZHEERE

by MERERBHAESEREEE
R ER IR BB

BERE —T-hFFEH
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL

P& R R R] B A4S 5T B R B 3 3R
2B ([ B PR Bt 75 3 o5 28

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS all)#&)
("IFRSS") (continued)
As a lessee (continued) YEBEBA(E)

c¢) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases e
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and Hong Kong was determined on a portfolio
basis; and

AR LR E IR RRER & E
BRISEURSGER cHEEE
FERE—BRBRE - AEMmME P
EARAXMB(HEDYERE
BYERETHE 2R ETRE
BEEETE &

RERENBRAERBEMZEE
LEAEEASBABLER MR
IBEERCHE 2

d) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances d)
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied is 4.95%.

HREMDBRBERECHE 1
BREHERER AKECEARE
RERBHIRESEE R RIEER
2R o Fr F AN S 2R AR A8 A R S
4.95% -

At 1 January

2019
R-ZB-IF
—H—H
RMB’000
ARETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed asat R=-_ZE—\F+_-_HA=+—HFEE
31 December 2018 KB THE A H 1,652
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant LHEBREERFRMENEEER
incremental borrowing rates 1,504
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease & : AI{THEBEFEA-—FHEHNE X
term ending within 12 months from FEF B#B121E A AT 4
the date of initial application HWHE (200)
Recognition exemption BRHE—RHEE
— short-term leases (93)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-—NF—A—BNHEEA®E 1,211
Analysed as FaR il
Current B 310
Non-current FEMRB 901
1,211
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERFNE] RIS BIRR 9 15 3R
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL EXER ([ BEIPRE ISR & 2%
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 8l &)
("IFRSSs") (continued)
As a lessee (continued) EBABA(E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as R_ZE-NF-—A—HEREREER
at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: EZERAERRENATSE
Right-of-use
Note assets
Kt aE FERHEEE
RMB'000
ARET T

Right-of-use assets relating to operating & Fi BB Bf 75 3R &5 B 51655 12
leases recognised upon application of ERELLEHE R 2 A

IFRS 16 BE 1,255
Reclassified from prepaid land lease BEMTHEESEFTLE

payments (a) 26,954

28,209

(@)  Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for @ MRZTE—N\EFE+-_A=+—H 3t

own used properties were classified as prepaid land lease ERYWEZHREBEELEL Z A

payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon application HARIEB EATEMNLHHEE RE

of IFRS 16, the current portion of prepaid land lease R EREEDNF165:1% 8

payments included in prepayments, deposits and other ERTERFIE R e K& H MR YR

receivables amounting to approximately RMB731,000 TEWFEMN TS RETDOAR

and non-current portion of prepaid land lease payments #731,0007T R TE(T T FH S FERED

amounting to approximately RMB26,223,000 were B4 AN R%26,223,0007T 2 & #
reclassified to right-of-use assets. DEEFRAEEE-

The following adjustments were made to the amounts UTEYR -—ZT—NhE—H —HA2%

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial G BRARTPAERSEIEL 2R

position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not o ma i mT a2 IaH o

affected by the changes have not been included.

muEy —2-ness 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL

2. BERAHE] RAESE] BRI 8|
2B ([ B PR Bt 75 3 o5 28

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 8l )&
("IFRSS") (continued)
As a lessee (continued) ERFEBA(E)
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at IFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018  Adjustments 2019
R=B-h#&
FATRA —A—H
—E-N\F B BT B R
+=BA=+-H RIS 16%
BEZREE AE HETZEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTFT ARBTFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepaid land lease payments B THES 26,223 (26,223) =
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 28,209 28,209
Current assets NEEE
Prepayments, deposits IR 2E R HE MY
and other receivables A 7,480 (775) 6,705
Current liability nEEE
Lease liabilities MEAE - 310 310
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HE&E - 901 901
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("IFRSSs") (continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with IFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

(i)

(ii)

Upon application of IFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as
if the existing leases are modified as at 1 January
2019. The application has had no impact on the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. However, effective on 1 January
2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease
term after modification are recognised as income on
straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
to allocate consideration in the contract to each
lease and non-lease components. The change in
allocation basis has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the current year.

The directors of the Company concluded that the change
in the initial application of IFRS 16 has had no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current year.

F& R R R] B ASAE 5T B PR B A 3R
o2 B ([ B PR Bt 5 i o 28
B D)

ERHBEA

RIBEIFR M A 3R E R F 1657 2 BIE
R NEBBERAREESLHE
AZBEELEMBEFE AR
EEIRRM MRS ERIE 165k 8 B RE
AEHESZEHEAR Mttt
EEIILLBREH

() REABRBRIEREERNF16
SR1% BRI B E R ER A
AR BEHEBEREAHE T
FiEEEERBZHEES NIE
WIREHER—_ZT—NF—A
—REEI 2 AAAR - ERAE#
HBHAREBNR -T—NE— A
—BZEATBRRRRL EY
- RXMm - B-_FT—NLFEF—A—
B BEEERI R Z&ETHAE
ZHEEMNFRIERE 2 BEAE
BREEERBBA -

(il B=FT—NF—-—A—BiE &%
=] fE P B R B 7 ¥R 5 £ RIS 15
HEP AR - 88 KR
ZRESEEZZHEE NI FHEK
Do nEEEFHWEHAEEH
RER 2R A M REZER I
BEXTE-

ARAREERR BRERBERMB
BEEAF16R o EHPBEHAEE
RERZEAMBERREKEMEKX
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=
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of a Material*
and IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform#

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisitions date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments,
the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company consider the application of

the new and amendments to IFRSs would not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all the applicable individual
IFRSs with collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRSs, IASs and Interpretations issued by the IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
convertible notes and provision for contingent
consideration which are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are accounted with IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or IAS

7 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use
in 1AS 36.

3.
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90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level T  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB102,812,000. The Group incurred a loss for the year
of approximately RMB314,436,000. At 31 December
2019, the Company’'s total liabilities exceeds its total
assets by approximately RMB140,601,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore, the Group
may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern (continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to finance its future working capital and finance
requirements. Certain measures have been taken to
manage its liquidity needs and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1.

The secured bank loans amounting to
RMB98,000,000 were classified as current liabilities
due to the existence of a repayment on demand
clause in the loan agreement. The Group will
negotiate with the PRC banks for the renewal
of the Group’s PRC bank borrowings when they
fall due to secure necessary facilities to meet the
Group’s working capital and financial requirements
in the near future. The directors of the Company
have evaluated all the relevant facts available to
them and are of the opinion that the Group has a
good track record or relationship with the banks.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group will be able to roll over or refinance the bank
borrowings upon maturity;

The Group has obtained a credit facility amounting
to RMB21,500,000 in total from an independent
third party. The credit facility had been utilised
amounting to RMB16,200,000 as at 31 December
2019. Subsequent to the reporting period,
the credit facility had been increased from
RMB21,500,000 to RMB35,000,000. The facility
would be utilised as the working capital and for
financing the ongoing business of the Group;

The Group has obtained a loan facility from
the independent third party in amount of
RMB20,000,000 with a maturity date on 25 March
2022 secured by the Group’s property. The facility
would be utilised as the working capital and for
financing the ongoing business of the Group;

The Group will implement operational plans to
control costs and generate adequate cash flows
from the Group's operations; and

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern (continued)

5.  The directors of the Company have been aware of
the capital deficiency of the Company and would
consider all available source of funding included,
but not limited to, requiring the subsidiaries to
declare dividends.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group'’s
cash flow projections prepared by management. The cash
flow projections cover a period of not less than fifteen
months from the date of the annual report. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group would have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next fifteen months from
the date of the annual report. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 on a going concern basis.

Should the Group and the Company be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment or properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use asset and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

The Group as a lessor (prior to 1 January 2019)

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in PRC are required to participate in central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon application
of IFRS 16) or “prepaid land lease payments” (before
application of IFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are
tangible assets held for use in the production or supply
of goods or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amounts are to be recovered principally
through sale transactions and sales are considered highly
probable. It is stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on a systematic
basis with reference to projected sales volume, upon
future sales volume of related products.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful life are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks or
other financial institutions and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of damages in
value, and having been within three months of maturing
of acquisition.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other net income and
gains” line item.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits and bank balances and cash) which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables which are assessed individually with a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHE#E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRMITAE(ZE

Financial assets (continued) EEEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE (&)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) () EERm@EEEINE)
In particular, the following information is taken into LHE TG EEREELEE
account when assessing whether credit risk has TN E NyER

increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration o
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market o
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in o
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration o
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse o
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above | LA EROA - AEE
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk B & 4 3K 8 B 8 iB61E A
has increased significantly since initial recognition B S ERE 8 VRERNEKR
when contractual payments are more than 6 FEEE RIEAEEBAASE X
months past due, unless the Group has reasonable AISEERFRA TWERE 5
and supportable information that demonstrates i ©

otherwise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—ZFE—NF+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHER#A)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EWMITE(E)

Financial assets (continued) ETHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEME (&)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) 0) {:.ffﬂ o ZE 248 4 (42 )

(i)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
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near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and Hﬁfi}é\éj%fﬁ AABITHE 4R
business conditions in the longer term may, but will SREFETHE N BIEKIA
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower NEERRewETARK -BE

to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 365 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(ii)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the aging
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
o Past-due status; and

° Nature, size and industry of debtor.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9/IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
deposit received, other payables and accruals, short
term borrowings and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of share options that are
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

() Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was approximately RMB49,291,000
(2018: RMB51,415,000). The directors of the Company
consider that no impairment loss is recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amounts
of the Group’s intangible asset was approximately
RMB77,255,000 (2018: RMB364,246,000), net of
impairment loss of approximately RMB234,295,000
(2018: RMB195,120,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. The Group
reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately RMB29,367,000
(2018: RMB40,556,000), net of allowance for write-
down inventories of approximately RMB4,527,000 (2018:
RMB4,361,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
past due analysis as groupings of various debtors on this
basis demonstrate similar loss patterns with shared credit
risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the
Group's historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is approximately RMB44,784,000,
net of allowance for credit losses of approximately
RMB7,986,000 (2018: RMB33,659,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMBS8,374,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of convertible notes

As described in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the convertible notes are measured at
fair values. The Group engaged independent firms of
professionally qualified valuers to assist in determining
the fair value of convertible notes. The fair value of
the convertible notes is determined using the binomial
model. The significant inputs into the model included
risk-free interest rate, conversion price/exercise price,
stock price, expected volatility, expected life and expected
dividend yield. When the actual results of the inputs
differ from management’s estimate, it will have an impact
on the fair value gain or loss and the fair value of the
convertible notes.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in note 3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
At 31 December 2019, the best estimate of the carrying
amount of deferred development costs was RMB255,000
(2018: RMB27,806,000). Further details are included in
note 18.

Provision for contingent considerations of
acquisitions

Acquisition of intangible assets has involved post-
acquisition performance-based contingent considerations.
The Group recognise the fair value of those contingent
considerations for acquisitions, as of their respective
acquisition dates as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired intangible assets. These
fair value measurements require, among other things,
significant estimation of post-acquisition performance of
the acquired intangible assets and significant judgement
on time value of money. Contingent considerations shall
be remeasured at their fair value resulting from events
or factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for contingent considerations of
acquisitions (continued)

The contingent consideration reflects a specified multiple
of the post-acquisition profitability of the acquired
intangible assets. Consequently, the actual additional
consideration payable will vary according to the future
performance generated from the intangible assets, and
the liabilities provided reflect estimates of such future
performances.

Due to the variety of bases of determination, it is not
practicable to provide any meaningful sensitivity in
relation to the critical assumptions concerning future
profitability of the acquired intangible assets and the
potential impact on the gain or loss on remeasurement of
contingent consideration payables.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the Graphene-based products segment applied the
technology know-how by applying graphene in
the production of graphene-based ethylene-vinyl
acetate (“EVA") foam material (“Graphene-based
EVA Foam Material”) and slippers (“Graphene-
based Slippers”), and graphene deodorizing and
sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners
(“Sterilizing Chips"”) (collectively as “Graphene-
based Products”); and

() the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment loss
on intangible assets and assets held for sale, fair value
change on convertible notes and provision for contingent
consideration at FVTPL, finance costs as well as corporate
and other unallocated expenses.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, prepaid land lease payments,
intangible assets, raw materials, work in progress,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits, cash and bank balances and assets classified
as held for sale as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude trade and bills payables,
certain other payables and accruals, short term
borrowings, lease liabilities, income tax payable, deferred
tax liability and provision for contingent consideration as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEERE)
Segment revenues and results DEU T R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT BIgn] 2 MK &S5 afE|n K&
results by reportable and operating segment. B RS R EE DT -
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-hF+-A=1+—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BARE REE
Em Em HE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T:R

Segment revenue i L6
Sales to external customers mINRBEFHE 2,721 4,024 162,942 169,687
Segment results DEPELE (4,340) 2,422 20,936 19,018
Reconciliation: HE
Interest income B A 85
Other unallocated net income H #b k& 5 B Ut A K Uk 25

and gains HER 2,849

Reversal of impairment loss ~ HERRELZEKE S
on trade receivables from BR FOR B 18 B ]

sales of goods 521
Corporate and other TEREMRIERX

unallocated expenses (44,547)
Amortisation of intangible BEREESE

assets (52,720)
Impairment loss on intangible % & /& )i (8 &5 18

assets (234,295)
Impairment loss on assets HAGEEERERRE

held for sale (3,000)
Fair value gain on BATEGFABRS ZEIA

provision for contingent REBRBZ ATHER

consideration at FVTPL 4,769
Finance costs AR (6,072)
Loss before tax BR B Al B 1B (313,392)
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DXERE)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBR B R EE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_ZE-N\F+=-A=+—HLFE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BEARE A=
= Em 1B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%BTR ARETT
Segment revenue 7 B s
Sales to external customers RIINRZPIHE 3,463 4,510 156,507 164,480
Segment results o EE (550) 537 29,451 29,438
Reconciliation: #Hk
Interest income FEWA 61
Other unallocated net income  E 2k 5 FR Ut A K Ui zs
and gains FH 2,488
Impairment loss on trade  $HEEMREL 2 EKE
receivables from sales of B ERFREEE
goods (3,718)
Corporate and other TEREMKRDERS
unallocated expenses (51,264)
Amortisation of intangible B EESH
assets (77,640)
Impairment loss on intangible & i/ & & R A 518
assets (195,120)
Fair value loss on convertible 12 AF(EFABRZ
notes at FVTPL AMEER 2 A TE
S (17,797)
Fair value gain on BRAFEFABRE KA
provision for contingent REBHE 2 A TFEKS
consideration at FVTPL 43,533
Finance costs BMEKA (5,862)
Loss before tax B AT ET 1R (275,881)
BEEY —T-NEER
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. o3ERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT AR 25 R &L D8 D ARE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BERNEENBED
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-hE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
B AR VaE- Y
Em Em WM

RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TRE AR¥TxR

Segment assets DEIEE 1,647 3,778 53,407 58,832
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other TEREMAIBEEE

unallocated assets 215,566
Total assets BEBE 274,398
Segment liabilities SHEE 300 - - 300
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other rEREMRSEAR

unallocated liabilities 226,120
Total liabilities BEER 226,420
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) DWEEREE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—N\F+-A=1t—HILLFEE

Graphene-

Boree based
Products Products OEM Total

EAE Ve Y
E E FEEE]

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARERTR

Segment assets PHEE 1,580 461 55,716 57,757
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other TERAEMKIEEE

unallocated assets 486,902
Assets classified as held DEARERENEE

for sale 26,000
Total assets BEBEEE 570,659
Segment liabilities oHEE 300 - - 300
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other TEREMKRIEERE

unallocated liabilities 256,417
Total liabilities BERE 256,717

mwry —2-reeg |37/
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2019

7 EER ()
H a5 3 E R
BE-B-NF+-A=+—ALFE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BAE AERK
Em Em #HEg
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE AR%BTnR AR¥®Tr AR%TxR
Included in arriving at EESHEF
segment profit/(loss) are:  (E#E)KCTA -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ HEBMELZEWE S
impairment loss on trade R CREEsERD),/
receivables from sales of BB E 1
goods (97) 41 (465) (521)
(Reversal of write-down)/ BE (WoREm) /MR
write-down of inventories (330) - 496 166
(355)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-E- N\ +=-A=+—BHLEE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BAR ARG
Em 230 R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®BTT
Included in arriving at EESHEF
segment profit/(loss) are:  (E#B)KCTA -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ SHEEMELZEKE S
impairment loss on trade R CREsERD),/
receivables from sales of EEE
goods (278) 41 3,955 3,718
Reversal of write-down of 7 & U )
inventories (546) - - (546)
3,172
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. OEERE)
Geographical information & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIREFH Kz
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT T ARETT

PRC (principal place of operations) R (FELEME) 10,898 10,449

United States of America ("US") FEHER G RE (B ]) 152,168 147,314

South America EEJ 782 590

Europe B 2,629 1,730

South East Asia R 316 1,128

Other countries =R ETER 2,894 3,269

169,687 164,480

The revenue information above is based on the A FWHER T EREFAEE
locations of the customers. 4o

(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥REEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BT T ARETT

PRC (principal place of operations) RE(EELEME) 153,897 441,881
The non-current assets information above is based A EIERBEEER HENREE
on the locations of the assets. NEBEED -

wigwy —2-resm 139




140

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

7 EER ()

TEEFHER

RIAMFE  KEEP 2 E A%
ERRHEREI10% EEMT ¢

as follows:
2019 2018
—2-hE —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFIT
Customer A ZEA 80,164 94,663
Customer B = FB 33,744 19,034
Customer C* 2BEC* 27,169 16,446
@ Revenue from Customer C contributed less than 10% * REEPCZHHFERNERHZE =

of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group’s major customers are included in the OEM
segment.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019

E-NE+-A=+—HItFEE
HEREDMI10% °

AEBETEZEFBEEEOEMAER



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wiz Hitw AR WS F5E

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WM AEBME X HERE

the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for HNBRBRENESITNEENEEER
returns and trade discounts. EERHFE o

An analysis of revenue, other net income and gains is as Weas ~ E A A R U a TR 2 4T a8

follows: ™

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBTIT

Revenue Wz
Manufacture and sale of goods FENMHEE M 169,687 164,480
Other net income and gains Ht g A K& U2 9 58
Interest income FEHA 85 61
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 574 591
Sales of semi-products SHE R M - 115
Rental income under operating leases KEHEFTEAMESBA 467 315
Subsidy income* AL A 1,532 1,446
Exchange gain, net P 5 W 2 5 58 256 -
Others HA 20 21
2,934 2,549
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * U 4 A B8 2% S5 4 B MY AR E A IR
relating to these subsidies. HHAIEN,
FINANCE COSTS 7. MERK
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®EF T
Interest on bank loans RITRHEAMEEFE
and other borrowings 5,890 5,862
Interest on letter of credit ERERNE 111 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 71 -

6,072 5,862
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. ERBiIAIEIE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFENGRBREBEERETS% (GTA)
(crediting) the following items: ATIER :
2019 2018
—g-hE C—TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA* 139,402 125,575
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB MR E
equipment* 6,131 6,001
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FREEENE 1,315 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TART TR S #EE
payments - 731
Amortisation of intangible assets I & 2 5 52,720 77,640
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNFASZ(BIEES
directors’ remuneration - note 9)*: e —BfsE9)* :
Wages and salaries IENHS 53,474 52,391
Equity-settled share-based payments e IS 45 E AR 1
BETER R 5,299 15,205
Staff welfares EEEH 821 1,210
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIKBRETEI
schemes 3,357 2,305
62,951 71,111
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ERR B & 1,357 1,332
Impairment loss on intangible assets EBREEEREBE 234,295 195,120
Impairment loss on assets held for sale  FEAFELEREER 3,000 -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  $HERERELS 2 EWE 5 8R
loss on trade receivables from sales of FORERBERE) TRE
goods E518 (521) 3,718
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMOE(MosEmE)
inventories 166 (546)
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE  KEREHEER
plant and equipment E518 139 167
Exchange (gain)/loss, net BE 5, (e )18 5 %58 (256) 579
Research and development costs** 2L Bl AN * * 10,683 8,233
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

*

The cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31
December 2019 included approximately RMB34,441,000
(2018: RMB35,819,000) relating to direct staff costs,
depreciation of manufacturing facilities and depreciation
of right-of-use assets (2018: direct staff costs,
depreciation of manufacturing facilities and operating
lease payments in respect of land and buildings), which

—F-NFFA=t—HUFE

8. I@ﬁﬂuﬁﬂﬁ(ﬁ*

BHE-_Z-NF+=ZA=+—8HL
FEEEFERABRENARK
34,441,000C (ZF—N\F: ARK
35,819,0007C) W EL # fE B A A -
FEXRBTENRGCAEEENE
(ZE—\F - EEEEKRKA £E
RETENR L MEFEERE

are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed 30 - WWEFIB B IFEET A LA
above for each of these types of expenses. BEERHEREERE-
**  The research and development costs are included **  RERAEFAGEEGREME

in “General and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EWERE [ — R RITHFAS] -

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the BEEAEMAEL BBRAEH &

RE(RBEZEHNDER)ROI(E
622GE ) IR BEMNFEEEREETT
BABMEIT :

years, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Companies
(Disclosure of information about benefits of directors)
Regulations (Cap. 622G), are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREEFIT
Fees (note a) & (note b) we (Mita) % (Hathb) 566 543
Other emoluments: HEHe :
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in —¥& R NEY
kind (note b) & (note ¢) BAI(HaEb) & (Htatc) 1,534 1,281
— Contributions to retirement benefits — RN R IR
schemes (note b) & (note ¢) (MiaEb) & (BiaEc) 45 30
- Equity-settled share-based payments —}ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%
(note ¢) e (M atc) 196 492
2,341 2,346
meny —2-nEesEg |43
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEME ()
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes iigza
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIUFHTES
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive RNERENHENBIIIFATES
directors during the current year are as follows: RS LIAT :
2019 2018
—B-NF =F )\
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Ms. An Na gyl o 177 170
Professor Zhao Jinbao & R 106 102
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAERE 177 169
460 441
There were no other emoluments payable to the FEA-WEENEBEIFRTEESH
independent non-executive directors during the year HMle (ZE—NF: &) -
(2018: Nil).
(b) Non-executive director (b) 3EHITES
The fees paid or payable to non-executive director during REREMNKENERTEETHE
the current year are as follows: ST
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Ms. Lin Weihuan: MEE & T
Fee e 106 102
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYREF 37 -
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes iR /K 1& F| 5t 2 4 2 4 =
147 102
Ms. Lin Weihuan has been appointed as the financial MEBZTR_ZE—-NAFENA—H
consultant of a subsidiary of the Company on 1 August BZERAREZ —HKEARN

' S .

2019 and her emoluments disclosed include those for MR K LiMe e ERAER

F 5 BT AT IR AR TS 2 BN & ©

services rendered by her as the financial consultant.
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEMEHE)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes (continued) Kiat (4&)
() Executive directors and chief executive officer () BITEERTHEAR
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement
and benefits share-based benefits
Fees in kind payments schemes Total
ERELE
FEEER IRBAER BARER
e ENEN IES HE L3 L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR®T R ARBT T ARBT T ARBT R

Year ended 31 December 2019  HE=-E-N&

TZAZ+-BLFE

Mr. Zheng Jingdong! PEREAE - 568 196 25 789
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung 2L - 929 - 16 945
- 1,497 196 | 1,734

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share-based benefits
Fees in kind payments schemes Total

BRELEE

5o 2Rk MRHAER RINER
ik ENET {15 HEEES &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2018 ~ HE=Z-N\%

tZA=t-RALEE
Mr. Zheng Jingdong' PEREE = 553 49 15 1,060
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung REHEE = 728 = 15 743
- 1,281 492 30 1,803
U Mr. Zheng Jingdong has been appointed as the chief 1 MERELER-_ZT—=FAHA
executive officer of the Company on 10 May 2013 and +THEZEEBARRNRI{THEHA
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services H HE e EEESIT
rendered by him as the chief executive officer. BAEF TR ERE 28 E
There was no arrangement under which a director and FERN - HETTEERTHRAEK
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any ERRERETAMNES 2ZTH (=
remuneration during the year (2018: Nil). T—NFE E)o
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2018: Nil) directors and chief executive officer,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2018: five) highest paid employee who
is neither a director nor chief executive officer of the
Company are as follow:

10.

hEEREHES

FRN AERRSHEETEME(ZF
—N\F: B)REFENITHAE KE
BB & BN EXHIEE9 - ARRIE
B=R(ZF-)\F: AR)FEEK
FITHABEHNRSFHRERENAFEN
MEFFIRIT -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 28 R EYREF] 2,305 1,849
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIREFIFTEI R

schemes 47 68
Equity-settled share-based payments B EAE ARG

RERERK 736 5,772

3,088 7,689

The remuneration of the remaining highest paid
employees are fallen within the following bands:

IRESHFEEZMEN FUATE

\|

ol

Number of employees

EE®E
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR #500,0017C

Z= AR ¥1,000,0007T 2 -

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,0017C
Z= AR #¥1,500,0007C 1 4

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017T
= AR ¥2,000,0007C — -

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR #2,000,0017C
= AR ¥2,500,0007C - 1
3 5
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 11. Fi8Bimx /(JEM)
2019 2018
—B-nE ZEF)\E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Current — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  ElHi — hE ¥ S8

Charge for the year FRE 600 700
Under—provisions in prior years BAFERETRE 378 21
Deferred tax EAER IR 66 (1,274)
Total tax expense/(credit) for the year FRHERY (EMD) 1,044 (553)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided HANEEERTEEEE 2 HIEE
as the Group’s tax losses brought forward from prior EHBAERNESTBEELANESEN o
years exceeded the assessable profits arising in Hong A T EELEEBRNEHBE(ZZ
Kong for the year (2018: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable — )\ : #&)- P A &R T i A A 18
in the PRC have been calculated at the prevailing rates, TR ERENRETEN 2EEER
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices HEARRTE -

in respect thereof.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BERBEPERESRE(DEMRER
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT E D ECEMEBEBIETHIEN  BE
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2018: e EE SR EERN T
25%), except for one of the PRC subsidiaries which has BB AR BER_E—N\FER_F
been granted Advanced and New Technology Enterprise — NEZH15%H) &K BT 18 5 it &
status which entitles the subsidiary to a reduced income G AR B AT IR £25% (==
tax rate at 15% for 2018 and 2019. — N\ : 25%)e

BERE —T-hFFEH
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to
the “loss before tax” per consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as below:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

1. FIBHEIRS (i) (&)

FARIER /M)A EREEE R
H b 2 Wat 5% P 2 51 B9 T BR 7% Al &5
BIHERMT

2019 2018

—E-hE —EF-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Loss before tax BRIERIEE (313,392) (275,881)

Tax at the applicable tax rates RBERAGERGENNIEA (53,329) (46,428)

Income not subject to tax BERTBA (1,829) (8,738)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  ~A] AR ELUL B B9F0E &

F < 55,863 55,866

Under-provision of income tax in prior years @1{EFE TS EETE 378 21

Tax effect of tax loss utilised EBARIBEENTGEE (105) -
Tax effect of temporary differences RIERERFEEE 2 T8

not recognised B 66 (1,274)

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year  FERAEFHRES (KH) 1,044 (553)

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate for the withholding
tax is 5% (2018: 5%). In estimating the withholding
taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
of the Company have made assessment based on the
factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group'’s
operations in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax
liability has been provided for the remaining of such
profits of approximately RMB467,166,000 (2018:
RMB492,201,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

At 31 December 2019, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2018: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company's subsidiaries
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$762,000 (2018: HK$1,486,000)
equivalent to approximately RMB671,000 (2018:
RMB1,254,000) available for offsetting against future
profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
included a loss of approximately RMB232,654,000 (2018:
RMB255,581,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 43(i)).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 and since the end of the
reporting period.
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14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB314,436,000 (2018:
RMB275,328,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,453,805,361 (2018: 1,095,511,663)
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2019 included the 1,304,059,608 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2019 and 182,800,000
ordinary shares issued on 8 March 2019 in respect of the
completion of subscription of new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 included the 1,084,059,608 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2018, and 220,000,000
ordinary shares issued on 13 December 2018 in respect
of conversion of convertible notes.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s share options as the exercise of the
Company’s share options would result in a decrease in
loss per share, and is regarded as anti-dilutive.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. MI% BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and Motor  andoffice  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
G £ER
BF HERKE RE  BOERE HEXE RRIE an
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\F-A-H 45,243 26,992 1,730 6,628 15,959 9,807 106,359
Additions Em - 3,450 3 167 2,269 10,000 16,489
Disposals HE - (1,618) (374) (1) (10) - (2,003)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NETZA
=1-A 45,243 28,824 1,359 7,3% 18,218 19,807 120,845
Accumulated depreciation:  EiHHFE:
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 32,828 16,670 1,515 5374 8,556 - 64,943
Provided during the year EREE 3,265 1,501 57 667 511 - 6,001
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (1,158) (355) (1) = = (1514)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\ETZA
=1-A 36,093 17,013 1,217 6,040 9,067 - 69,430
Net carrying amount: BREHE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE1ZA
== 9,150 11,811 142 1,354 9,151 19,807 51,415
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-n&E-A-H 45,243 28,824 1,359 1.3% 18,218 19,807 120,845
Additions byl - 3223 - 3 750 197 4,203
Disposals e - (1,149) - (24) - - (1.173)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA
=+-A 45,243 30,898 1,359 7,403 18,968 20,004 123,875
Accumulated depreciation:  EiHHFE:
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 36,093 17,013 1217 6,040 9,067 - 69,430
Provided during the year £/ 3,054 1,820 51 213 963 - 6,131
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (954) - ) - - (977)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A
=1-H 39,147 17,879 1,268 6,260 10,030 - 74,584
Net carrying amount; BEFE:
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA
=1-A 6,096 13,019 9 1,143 8,938 20,004 49,291
HERY —T-NEFH
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB6,096,000 (2018:
RMB9,150,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the construction
in progress with carrying amount amounting to
approximately RMB19,807,000 was completed and
pledged to an independent third party to secure general
financial facilities granted to the Group. The construction
in progress has been rented out for rental income and
classified as investment properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FHEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HENE g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETTL ARET T
(note a)
(fiita)
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZZ-NE-F—H
Carrying amount REE 26,954 1,255 28,209
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+ZA=+-H
Carrying amount REE 26,223 1,128 27,351
For the year ended BE-2-1n%
31 December 2019 +ZR=t—-HILEE
Depreciation charge HELH (731) (584) (1,315)
Addition 20 - 457 457
(731) (127) (858)

Expense relating to short-term leases £33 1% & % A 4370 B B8 B 75
and other leases with lease terms &R F 165 & A ER B
ending within 12 months of the 12 ANTAENEAME

date of initial application of IFRS 16 EHAMHEX 384
Total cash outflow for leases MEZRERTAE 1,014

Note: Bt iz

(@) The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and the (@) MHELUAFHBBBEENS L
respective prepaid land lease payments are held under HeRETRHBEERF -NIKER
medium term leases. At the reporting date, the Group B AREBBEEBEMEEIAR
has pledged the leasehold lands included in the right-of- #26,223,000cMBEE L (BS
use assets with a net carrying amount of approximately CEEREEE) (EANEEER—
RMB26,223,000 to secure general banking facilities MIRITRIEMIER -

granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. LS

2018
—E-)N\F
RMB’000
AREFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January MN—A—B8REE 27,685
Amortisation during the year FREH (731)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HB&ERHEE 26,954

Less: current portion included in prepayments,  J& : 5+ A BT FKIE - & K& E i fE U X
deposits and other receivables HH)RBNE D (731)
Non-current portion FETRENEL 5 26,223

The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and the
respective prepaid land lease payments are held under
medium term leases.

In 2018, the Group has pledged the land use right with a

net carrying amount of approximately RMB26,954,000 to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
020
distribution Deferred
Technology vending development
Know-how system costs Total
02058  EERH
RitA® BERR 22 X

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
(notes a, ¢)  (notes b, ¢) (note d)

(Hizta-c) (Hiztb-c)  (Hitd)

Cost: PR
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—H—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,528 1,740,046
Addition i = = 25 25
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019  RA=-Z—\F

+-A=+—-Bk

“Z-NE—F—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,553 1,740,071
Addition Hig - - 24 24
At 31 December 2019 R-T—NE

+-A=1t—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,577 1,740,095
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: 25 85 KRB
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\E—AF—H 1,038,518 4,954 59,593 1,103,065
Provided for the year FREE 65,880 6,606 5,154 77,640
Impairment loss for the year FERREEE 195,120 = = 195,120
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019  RZZ—\F

+-RA=+—-8Bk

—T-NE-H-H 1,299,518 11,560 64,747 1,375,825
Provided for the year R 39,273 6,605 6,842 52,720
Impairment loss for the year FRREERE 187,727 25,835 20,733 234,295
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NE

+=-—R=+—"H 1,526,518 44,000 92,322 1,662,840
Net carrying amount: ARmEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NFE+=A

==k 61,000 16,000 255 77,255
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+=-A=1t—H” 288,000 48,440 27,806 364,246

BERE —T-hFFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

It represented certain technological know-how in respect
of the application of graphene and includes one patent in
the US (“US Patent”), four invention patent applications,
three utility model patent applications and two utility
model patents in the PRC (collectively as “PRC Patents”),
relating to the manufacturing of Graphene-based EVA
Foam Material, Sterilizing Chips and graphene-based
pressure-sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula
(collectively “Technology Know-how"), which was
acquired from Bluestone Technologies (Cayman) Limited
("Bluestorne”), an independent third party, in 2015.

The completion date of the transaction (“Completion
Date”) was 16 December 2015. The cost of the
Technology Know-how was determined by the directors
of the Company and represented the sum of the cash
consideration, the fair value of the convertible notes
(note 27) and provision for contingent consideration
at the acquisition date (note 29), and the capitalised
transaction costs arising directly from the acquisition of
the Technology Know-how. The Group's first graphene
application products mass production line was completed
and commenced trial production in late May 2016, and
mass production has already been commenced in July
2016.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (“020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. The directors of the Company consider
that the 020 distribution vending system would provide
customers with an interactive and unique shopping
experience, enhance the distribution channel of the
products made by the Group and establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The 020 distribution vending system has definite useful
lives and is amortised over 9 years using the straight-line
method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@

(continued)

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the 020 distribution vending system
with reference to a valuation of the 020 distribution
vending system conducted by an independent professional
valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited
("Ascent Partners”), using relief from royalty method
and considered that provision for impairment to the
carrying amount of the 020 distribution vending system
of approximately RMB25,835,000 (2018: Nil) should be
made as at 31 December 2019.

The relief from royalty method measures value by
estimating budgeted sales associated with the intangible
asset (i.e. 020 distribution vending system) over its useful
life and then applying an appropriate royalty rate to the
revenue estimate. It measures the costs that are avoided
(the royalty payments that are not made) due to the firm’s
ownership of the intangible asset. The royalty rate of
approximately 10.00% was used and the present value
of the estimated royalty payments is calculated using
discount rate of approximately 20.90%. Assumption of
budgeted sales was based on estimated daily average
sales of slippers from 020 distribution vending system
and expected growth rate of product mix.

The directors of the Company consider that 020
distribution vending system is a contributory asset
necessary to support the earnings associated with the
Technology Know-how (collectively “O20 Unit"”), being
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
earnings that are largely independent of the earnings from
other assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

(continued)

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Technology Know-how with reference
to a valuation of the Technology Know-how conducted
by Ascent Partners, using multi-period excess earnings
method (2018: multi-period excess earnings method)
and considered that provision for impairment to the
carrying amount of the Technology Know-how of
approximately RMB187,727,000 (2018: RMB195,120,000)
should be made as at 31 December 2019. The multi-
period excess earnings method is based on a discount
rate of approximately 22.90% (2018: 24.66%) and
financial forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company. Assumption of budgeted sales was based
on estimated daily average sales of slippers from 020
distribution vending system and expected growth rate
of product mix. Other key assumptions for the multi-
period excess earnings method relate to the estimation
of earnings which include estimated gross profit margin,
operating expenses and working capital requirements,
such estimation is based on the expected and forecasted
performance generated from the past performance of the
020 Unit and management’s expectations for the market
development.

In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on Sterilizing Chips, energy storage materials for
batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes
("Other Deferred Development Costs”). The directors
of the Company seek the opportunities in applying the
graphene material in products other than shoes and plan
to launch in future.

The Sterilizing Chips has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 5 years using the straight-line method.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Sterilizing Chips and considered that
the future economic benefits attributable to the Sterilizing
Chips is premature and provision for impairment of
approximately RMB20,733,000 (2018: Nil) should be
made as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
represented the cost of acquisition of patents for research
and development of manufacturing and application
technology of graphene material on certain products.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

19. INVENTORIES 19. &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Raw materials and consumables JRM K BB #E 7,228 6,523
Work in progress TR 8,268 9,959
Finished goods BB 13,871 24,074
29,367 40,556
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the write- 22— NE+_A=1+—HI®F
down of inventories of approximately RMB166,000 B REZANEINFERROAR
(2018: reversal of write-down of inventories of 166,000 ( —F— \F : FEWHR
approximately RMB546,000) was recognised in the profit o 49 A R#5546,0007T )
or loss.
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. BB S RN
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade receivables from sales of goods HERMELEZEKE S

BRK 52,770 42,033
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (7,986) (8,374)
44,784 33,659
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EH&%%EE?W%
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of ERPR - AEBEKEZ ZERF
allowance for credit losses as at the end of the reporting {;fﬂgﬂgﬁéﬁ&& EEHHZ| D
period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows: BREs AT e -
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARETT

Within 3 months 3MEA RN 39,440 32,877

4 to 6 months 4Z6{EA 3,637 739

7 to 9 months 7E9E A 1,707 43

44,784 33,659

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due B HERBERNEWE SRRSO
but not impaired: BT

2019 2018

—EB-NF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Past due but not impaired: E@HERRE
Within 3 months @AM 3,637 739
4 to 6 months 4% 61E A 1,707 43
5,344 782
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AREEHEXEFNEZKRITEUEE
on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is ET-MERIEHNEEHR—RAE=
generally for a period of three months. The Group seeks BR AREBMNBKELEREEDN
to apply strict control over its outstanding receivables FEUG FRIE - R A= S EE 1 ERPY - LA
and has a credit control department to minimise credit HIEEERR SR EEETHES
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BHI LR HERN FX i BEAEE
management. In view of the aforementioned and the TEWNESERERETNRANZRSE
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large Mo EEAREREZERR A&
number of diversified customers, there is no significant BEVEGSEERE ZEFEHEAET
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold AR HEMIEAEENIER - &
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade WE SRR ©
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20.

21.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
payment record, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Detail of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 42.

REMBRRWE

—F-NFFA=t—HUFE

FEW B 5 BRR (4)

E 8 BB RIRU(E &) FE U SR IR % ) % {8
EAKBERTFEALCENBILE
PoRIFBENRRLE NRARES
R BRNEEERIEEANE
BZFEANERAI 28D SH
AVEHIRE B -

BE_Z—NWEF+_A=+—HB8I#F
€ EWE SRR ORENHFBEH
R EE42 ©

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. ANRIE RERHEMWER
RECEIVABLES yi|
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Prepayments: TERTHRIA -
— Advanced to suppliers — [ R TR 3K 222 626
— Prepaid land lease payments —TEf LA - 731
— Others — HAh 951 1,321
Deposits: e -
— Acquisition of equipment —BEXRE 11,218 2,580
— Others —HAM 375 582
Other receivables: H b U sk IE
— For disposal of assets held for sale —HEZGFELE
(note 23) (Ftat23) 23,000 -
— Others —H A 839 1,272
Value-added Tax (“VAT") recoverable FERIBET ([EER]) 1,789 368
38,394 7,480

As at 31 December 2019, other than prepayments and
VAT recoverable, none of the above assets is either past
due or impaired (2018: Nil). The financial assets included
in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

Detail of impairment assessment of other receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 42.

R-ZZBE—hE+-_A=+—H0 BE
R K ER G ER AN il & EE
mEmEAgRE(ZZE— /\F : E&)o 5t
A& S mEEBT AT EE
RACERHEWRIER A -

BE_ZT-NFT+-_A=1t—HLHF

[E - HhfE R IE 2R BT EFEBH
AT EE42 ©

BERE —T-hFFEH
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22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK

BALANCES

Deposits amounting to approximately RMB3,855,000
(2018: Nil) have been pledged to secure for bills payables
of RMB12,850,000 (2018: Nil) for the year ended 31
December 2019 (note 24).

At 31 December 2019, the amount denominated in RMB
included in cash and bank balances and pledged deposits
amounted to approximately RMB5,869,000 (2018:
cash and bank balances amounted to RMB2,116,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earned interest
at fixed rate of 1.55% (2018: N/A) per annum. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of bills payables.
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22. CERER RERBRITEER

BHE_T-—hhFt+-_A=+—HItF
fE BEYHARYS855000T(—F
—NE: B)NEREA/AARK
12,850,0007C( —ZF— \4F : &) E
NEBREEHRER(HIF24)-

R-ZZE—HhE+_A=+—8 ' HUA
RESTENIRE RFTHAMBIE G
73 A4 A R #5.869,000T( - &
—NF: REMKBITEHBEARE
2,116,00070 ) AR AT B A H#
PREME R A BIBPBRINEE
D & 45T SERNEEER
- ASBEREEBIREEITINESE
TERVIRTTHE AR HE S A IS ©

RITE R E B RITF A XM EH
FBEXRFR -EEMEFFREESF
ME155%(—F—\F : TEMA)E
B RITERLREERERFRER
EERROHEBERLCENRT -CF
RORITFFBRENREEBRH
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ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 10 October 2017, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
(the “Buyer”) at a consideration of RMB26,000,000 to
dispose of certain property, plant and equipment with
land use right located in PRC. In accordance with IFRS
5, the disposal assets were reclassified as assets held
for sale in 2017. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the transfer of legal title of the disposal asset was
in progress and non-refundable deposit amounting to
RMB16,500,000 had been received. On 16 September
2019, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement to the sales and purchase agreement with
the Buyer and agreed to reduce the consideration by
RMB3,000,000 due to the quality issue. During the year,
the transaction had been completed as the land use right
had been transferred to the Buyer.

The major classes of assets classified as held for sale are
as follows:

23.

PEABEFENEE
RZZE—+t&F+A+H AEEHE—
HBYE=ZFTEFNDILEE W
& LAK{B AR 26,000,000t &
ETYE BEREZEARMRFE
ZrHMERE - R-_T—+F RE
BB SRS R ESH LEEES
MO BEARERENEE-HE_Z
—N\E+-_A=+—BHIFE HE
BEGELFMAENEEDEETH R
ERTARENEZEESE ARK
16,500,000 N —Z & — L F N A
TR - AEEEEFFLEEHHE
MExE TREEMERBEBR
B AR#3,000,0007C F£A - &
KB LHFERECEELES &
EHRPERFARNTTH

PHERFAFENEETZRMMN
T

RMB’000

AR¥TR

Building and leasehold improvements BFREEEE 44,318

Prepaid land lease payments AR A E 4,926

Impairment loss for 2017 RZZE—tFREEBE (23,244)
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R=-ZE—\F—HF—H —F—\F

and 1 January 2019 +—A=+—HBEk=_ZF—hhF—F—H 26,000

Impairment loss recognised during the year HA%E A HE R E &5 18 (3,000)

Transfer to other receivables (note 21) B E H M R RIA (M aE21) (23,000)

As at 31 December 2019 R—ZF—hE+—-—B=+—H _

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24. ERESRIRENERE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables FETE ZRRFK 44,006 46,806
Bills payables ANES 12,850 -
56,856 46,806

BigRE —Z-AFEER
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

25.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables

—NF+ZA=1—HILFE

24, F”Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁt&@ﬁ?%(fﬁ

EHRPR AEBENEZER R

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the J,jﬁmﬁi;ﬁéma,ﬁﬁ%ﬂ D B BR R AT
invoice dates, is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF — )\

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Within 3 months 3MEA RN 41,913 31,300

Over 3 months 31E A A E 14,943 15,506

56,856 46,806

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on six months terms (2018: six months).
Bills payable of approximately RMB12,850,000 were
secured by the Group’s pledged deposits amounted to
approximately RMB3,855,000 as at 31 December 2019.

The Group has no bills payable as at 31 December 2018.

FENE SERFKTEE  B—RIN/NE
A(ZZE—N\F: XEAA)AREE-R
—h&E+-A=+—0 &x&E
BB ERTROARYS,855,000
TCAX AR #12,850,0007T A fE 2
BERER- R=_ZFT—N\F+=A
=t+—8 AEEREENRE-

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 25. SRS HiEARZERE
AND ACCRUALS sTEHA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Deposits received: BEYIES -
— From customers —BPENRIA 300 300
— For disposal of assets held for sale —HERBEFEEE
(non-refundable) (RATRIE) 16,500 16,500
— For subscription of new Shares — REEF D - 19,715
— Others — HAth 380 405
Accruals EErER 8,111 7,944
Other payables H A FE 5018 26,262 34,487
Provision for contingent consideration SN BB (A E29)
(note 29) - 2,457
51,553 81,808
All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled FIBFEET B R RE Mt EMFIBTRAR
within one year. —FNEE-
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26. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

26. SHIEE

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Secured bank loans repayable AR —FRNEENEEFIET
within one year 8% (b) 98,000 106,000
Unsecured loans repayable AR—FRNEENEERER
within one year 16,200 17,100
114,200 123,100

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loans were
denominated in Renminbi and bore interest rates
ranging from 4.35% to 5.22% per annum.

At 31 December 2019, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of certain of
the Group's buildings and leasehold lands (2018:
buildings and land use rights), with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB6,096,000 (2018:
RMB9,150,000) and approximately RMB26,223,000
(2018: RMB26,954,000) respectively. In addition,
the bank loans were secured by guarantees
provided by an independent third party, a director of
the Company and his son.

(a)

(b)

R-ZE—NER T N\F+—
A=+—8 ' EFEUARE
B WZHHE AR T FL435%E
5.22%M B EETE -

R—E—hF+=—A=+—8"
AEEDREEBERMELOHAR
#6,096,000C( = —/)\F : A
R #9,150,0007T ) & #4) A R #&
26,223,0000t( =ZF—/\F : A
R #26,954,00070) 2 & TEF
MBEELIHM(ZFT—\F : EF
RtiERAE)ERAEBAE
FIRITE R ER - LN B
BITERBR—BBIE=H —
HZEARRNBESRER FRHEE
fRo

BERE —T-hFFEH

165




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27. AR EE
Valuation of the Convertible Notes AR EEEE
The movements of the Convertible Notes were as follows: AR EE RS E N -
2015 2016
Convertible Convertible
Notes Notes Total
—E-1F —E-RE
MRREE TRREE ok
(note a) (note a)
(Hizta) (fiiza)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTL ARETT ARBTT

Fair value at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—A—HH
NEE 87,002 57,820 144,822
Fair value loss charged to RZE— NEERNGRE
profit or loss during 2018 NTIRES 10,570 7,227 17,797
Conversion of convertible notes RZE—\FEH Bk
during 2018 E (97,572) (65,047) (162,619)
Fair value at 31 December 2018, RZE-N\E+-A=1+—8"
1 January 2019 and T-NE-A-Bk
31 December 2019 “Z-NF+ZRA=1+—-A
RMAFE = = =
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 27. IR EE(#)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes (continued) AHEREEGEE)
Note: Bt -

(a)

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 18, the Company
issued zero-coupon unsecured convertible notes (the
“2015 Convertible Notes”) with principal amount of
approximately HK$110,880,000 as part of the initial
consideration on 16 December 2015. As a settlement
of part of contingent consideration, the Company also
issued zero-coupon unsecured convertible notes (the
“2016 Convertible Notes”) with principal amount of
approximately HK$73,920,000 on 2 February 2016.

The 2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible Notes
(collectively the “Convertible Notes”) entitle the holder
to convert them into Shares at any time from the date of
issue of the 2015 Convertible Notes and 2016 Convertible
Notes to the date immediately prior to the maturity
date on 16 December 2018 and 2 February 2019 (the
“Maturity Dates”) respectively, being the third anniversary
of the date of issue, in multiples of HK$1,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.84 per conversion share subject
to adjustments in certain events. The Shares to be allotted
and issued upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all
respects among themselves and with all other Shares
in issue by the Company on the date of such allotment
and issue. Also, the Company has a right to redeem the
Convertible Notes at any time before the Maturity Dates
of the Convertible Notes.

The Convertible Notes included a debt instrument with
embedded derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the
Convertible Notes are designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL since it contains embedded foreign exchange
derivatives. The fair values of the Convertible Notes are
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
received a total of two conversion notices from
Bluestone in respect of the exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$184,800,000 at the
conversion price of HK$0.84 per conversion share. As
a result of this conversion, the Company allotted and
issued a total of 220,000,000 Shares to Bluestone in
December 2018 with additional share capital and share
premium of approximately HK$17,193,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB15,129,000) and approximately
HK$167,607,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB147,489,000) respectively. No Convertible Notes
remain outstanding at 31 December 2018.

(a)

LT FE18FT A A B8 UK B AT A0 B
mMs ARAIR=ZE—HFE+=A
TNBEITAEREA4110,880,000
B T EBEBEEA R FER
(IZ=E—RFamBRERER]) £
%%ﬁmmﬁﬁtwﬁﬁﬁii%
REHN—BH XRATRE

—ANE_A-_HETASEAY
73,920 ooo;%ﬁmfﬁ S]]
?fﬂXTﬁf( 7 /\iTTﬁHXT
Bl o

—E-AFABREEEE TN
FABBREE(GHEA AT BRERERE
BIBETREARNITRZ=ZZ—H
FOHRERE T NFEA K
ERRTANEEEEIHA S
BZE—)\F+_A+AAEK=F
—NhE-_A=-B([R/HA]) (A
BFTHPMEZEBFEER )/ —
H & E A B X - LA1,000,000/% 7T HY
BEIZRRETRIRKR(7H0.8475
T (RETHERA T THE)F=Z

—RFABMBERER - T —NFH]
BEERERS RN  RBBERK

FERERZETZBRMHNE T EAER
It 2 8 R BAZR w1 A B A 3 e 3%
TTHHEBETHAA LMD ES
RS AVERNNCIY) g 3 Ik
?ﬁﬁiﬂ,ﬁﬂEIWE@H%FE?EE@EHQHQ
RIUXK °

RBRERBEWNTHRARNITETL
ﬁﬁ'ﬂ%ﬁ%lﬁ"ﬁé‘%ﬂﬁéﬁﬁumfﬁ AJ
BREBRRIETE RIEA T ES AR
?&E’J@ﬁﬂﬁ1 o Al A AR AR B A F
TEB EMPAEHEE AFE
""""" @JFEE'JET—JEJJ%W‘TE & 7% N

=7
i ©

22— N\F+_A=+—H1
FE-AEBRIBELGRAER
HIBR50.848 T 2 BB 171
R4S #8%E184,800,0005 7T 2 A
BRZEENRREmEENE
HW 1 2 %38 &0 o B AN R R PR
KRR —_E—N\F+_AREX
2174 $£220,000,0000% f& 15 T &
A Kt BI4917,193,0005 7T (48
B R AR%15,129,0007T) B4
167,607,000 7T (#8115 R 49 A R #
147,489,0007T ) 2 B8 HMNAR AR K2 A% 1
mE-R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
B WA AR EIRD R e

BERE —T-hFFEH
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES

28. HEAEE

31 December

2019
R=-ZE—h%F
+=BA=+—H
RMB'000
ARET T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHERE:
Within one year —F R 604
Within a period of more than one year but  —&ZME 2 HERK
not more than two years 207
Within a period of more than two years but MEE R E 2 HIER
not more than five years 343
1,154
Less: Amount due for settlement within B ARRRBEEE T AR 12EA
12 months shown under current liabilities S 2 FOR (604)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 3| RARIELFEEE NER12{E1%
shown under non-current liabilities S 2 508 550
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29. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 18, provision for
contingent consideration as at 31 December 2015
represented the acquisition-date fair value of contingent
consideration of i) a maximum of approximately
RMB1,289,409,836 in cash (“Cash Consideration”); and
ii) the contingent convertible notes (“Contingent CNs"”)
with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB60,590,164), which will be issued
by the Company after fulfilment of certain conditions
specified in the acquisition agreement signed on 14
October 2015 (”Acquisition Agreement”), as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how.

The settlement of Cash Consideration and the
Contingent CNs is subject to the following conditions:

“Second Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
registration of the transfer of the PRC Patents and
the US Patent having been completed in the State
Intellectual Property Office of the PRC and the United
States Patent and Trademark Office respectively, such that
the Company having become the applicant of the PRC
Patents (or if the PRC Patents are granted, the Company
having become the PRC Patents owner) under the record
of the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC, and
the Company having become the US Patent owner under
the record of the United States Patent and Trademark
Office; and (b) the training provided by Bluestone
to the technicians of the Group and its contracted
parties having been completed, such that the Group
and its contracted parties having been able to produce
graphene-based EVA foam material and graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips based on the Technology
Know-how independently, and the graphene-based EVA
foam material and graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips produced having been certified by an independent
technical organisation at provincial level or above to
meet the inspection standard as stipulated under the
Acquisition Agreement.

29. AR ERE

HL BT 5E 18P 1l A5 B8 Uk B Al AN B T
s R_ZE—RAF+_A=1+—HH
IAREBEBEBE)VFRESREZHDARK
1,289,409,836 C([ HEMRE )  Kii)
K4 %873,920,0008 ;T (HHE R4 A
R #60,590,16470) Z KA MR T
B SHAMMRBREE ) 2KARER
WEBH s AFE ZEBEREER
BR-_E—RAF+ATHBRTZH
i ([ WEHE D IEENSE TIRG
EKBBRARRET ERIERIM
Mz HARIE -

ReRERIAATRBRIEZEEAR
AT R R - T AR ¢

[ ZHRF 5@ P EEM R XEE
H B B2 B A 20 Bl 50 A B B 51 R st
REEEEENRAERTRER
At A QR R BEERANBERER
REEP AR AT EFENEEBEG AL
FEBEMNDER L BARFKAT
BEMOEAAN) RERXBEEF K
AR BRI REET RSB ENNER
A RbEARARNEEREALTH
i ABREMNFEIE TR MR
KB RE AR T7 BB L B AT A
B E A RBEVAZOEM KA 216
BRERECR BEMEENAER
EVAZ A B AM A 2GR RRE S
EEFSERIA LB RMBERE
EHRMRRE 8RB HEREN
BT

BERE —T-hFFEH
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29. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions, the
second instalment in the amount of RMB450,000,000
should be payable by the Company, of which (a)
RMB389,409,836 should be paid in cash within 6
months after fulfilment of the Second Instalment
Conditions; and (b) RMB60,590,164 should be satisfied
by issuing the convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$73,920,000 to Bluestone or its nominee(s) within
15 business days after the fulfilment of the Second
Instalment Conditions.

“Third Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
accumulated turnover of a special purpose vehicle
("SPV") to be established by the Group for the sales
of graphene-based EVA foam material, graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips and graphene-based
wearable devices manufactured using the Technology
Know-how and/or any other companies (other than
companies of the Group) authorised to use the
Technology Know-how having reached RMB40,000,000;
and (b) the sales volume of graphene-based EVA foam
material having reached 20,000 cubic meters, each within
9 months after the Completion Date (or such later date
as the Company may agree).

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions
and the Third Instalment Conditions, the third instalment
in the amount of RMB270,000,000 should be payable
by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its nominee(s)
within 15 business days after the fulfilment of the Third
Instalment Conditions.

Second Instalment Conditions and Third Instalment
Conditions had been fulfilled and the Company had paid
RMB389,409,836 by way of cash and RMB60,590,164 by
way of issuing the 2016 Convertible Notes (refer to note
27) and RMB270,000,000 by way of cash on 2 February
2016 and 8 September 2016 respectively.
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29. AN ER B

RE G ERE  FHEBEA
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S RK(b) AR #60,590,1647T B8R
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29. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, upon fulfilment
of the Second Instalment Conditions and the Third
Instalment Conditions, Bluestone is entitled to share 35%
of the earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) of the SPV for the 6-month
period ended 30 June or 31 December of each year
("Interim Financial Period”) starting from the year the
Second Instalment Conditions and the Third Instalment
Conditions are fulfilled and each subsequent Interim
Financial Period (until the end of the sixth financial year
ending 31 December from the Completion Date), subject
to a maximum sharing amount of RMB630,000,000 (the
“EBITDA Sharing Mechanism”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the financial year in which
the Completion Date ending on would be considered
as the first financial year for the purpose of the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism. During the period under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism, for each Interim Financial Period, the
Company should appoint an independent auditor to issue
a certificate for the EBITDA of the SPV during the relevant
Interim Financial Period within 4 months from the end
of such Interim Financial Period, and the sharing amount
shall be paid by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its
nominee(s) within 15 business days after the issuance
of such certificate. Any license fees for the Technology
Know-how payable by the SPV to the Group will be
disregarded in the calculation of the EBITDA.

If the accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the period
under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism is less than
RMB1,800,000,000 (for the purpose, if the SPV records a
loss in any Interim Financial Period, the EBITDA of the SPV
of that Interim Financial Period would be regarded as zero
in calculating the accumulated EBITDA), the total sharing
amount under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism will be less
than RMB630,000,000 and the Company is not obligated
to pay the shortfall between RMB630,000,000 and 35%
of the actual accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the
period under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism.

Provision for contingent consideration as at 31 December
2019 represented the contingent cash consideration
payable to Bluestone or its nominee(s) under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism.

29.
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BB BREEREAL)GRFE B
IE YT R AT & A ([EBITDAL) &
% EEEIKEEAARE
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29. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

The movements of the provision for contingent
consideration were as follows:
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. AR ER B ()

KARER BT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

As at the beginning of the year REF] 4,769 48,302

Fair value gain credited to profit or loss  FRREmTAZAFE

during the year g (4,769) (43,533)

As at the end of the year RER = 4,769
Current portion included in deposits STABWIES - B ERRKIE

received, other payables and accruals KEGTBR Z mEE o - (2,457)

Non-current portion JERENEL - 2,312

The fair value of the provision for contingent
consideration is calculated using the discounted cash flow
approach (2018: discounted cash flow approach). The
inputs into the approach as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

SAREREN A FTERAKREAS
A ZE—N\F : BBERSWE)F
H-RZE—NERZZE—N\F+=
A=+—H ZEHNBAENT :

2019 2018
—F-1F —FN\F

Discount rate BhIR R

The provision for contingent consideration is classified
as a financial liability which will then be measured at fair
value and any changes in fair value will be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company conducted a fair value
assessment of the provision for contingent consideration
as at 31 December 2019, with reference to a valuation
conducted by Ascent Partners.
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 30. ELEBIEAE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEBINGEEVBRRARMS & TIE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax ERIBEERABRGEE THIE ARG
asset and liability have been offset. The following is 15 ¥R 25 2 IR I T I8 45 gk o AT EL 71 a0
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial T

reporting purposes:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Deferred tax asset EETRIBEE 514 580
Deferred tax liability EERIBEE (3,071) (3,071)
(2,557) (2,491)
The following are the major deferred tax liability and URASR M BTFFELHABMOHERL
asset recognised and movements thereon during the TERERIEABREEIKLE

current and prior years:

Allowance Undistributed
for inventories profits of PRC

and credit losses subsidiary Total
FEHEAR
REREEFREHE ZRDER Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
(note a)
(Hiita)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N5-A—-H - (3,071) (3,071)
Credited to profit or loss STABR 580 = 580
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-E—NF+-A=+—H
K=E-nE—A—H 580 (3,071) (2,491)
Charged to profit or loss KRR (66) - (66)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=+-H 514 (3,071) (2,557)
Note: Bfat -
(@) The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes to (@) ZEeBER_ZT—NLEFER_F
the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounted —N\EFE+ZA=+—H &&
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. HAEMBAREMKEARK

62,075,000 C Ky FE 0 FX ©

BERE —T-hFFEH
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. BA&
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of AKRBVEEREBITIRA 2FIEWM
the Company are as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NE —E)N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Authorised: ETE -
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each 5,000,000,0008 &M EE0.01% T
VE R 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
1,486,859,608 (2018: 1,304,059,608) ordinary shares of 1,486,859,608[( —Z—/\E
US$0.01 each 1,304,059,608f% ) &R E(E0.015 T
NEER 99,310 86,758
Ordinary shares ZER
Number of ordinary
shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of
each ordinary shares ordinary shares
SREE0.01
ETMERR
#E LERAE LEREE
US$'000 RMB'000
T£n ARETT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZE-\F—A—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 “E-\§TZA=T-B
“E-NE-A-Bk
“F-NET-A=1-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued and fully paid: ERIRMR:
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\F-A—-H 1,084,059,608 10,841 71,629
Conversion of convertible notes (note 27) SRRk EE(H327) 220,000,000 2,200 15129
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=ZF-\E+-A=+-Bk
“E-N\E-R-H 1,304,059,608 13,041 86,758
Completion of subscription of new Shares TR R 182,800,000 1,828 12,552
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-H 1,486,859,608 14,869 99,310
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Ordinary shares (continued)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcements dated 9
November 2018, 12 November 2018 and 8 March
2019, two independent subscribers subscribed for a
total of 182,800,000 new Shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.27 per subscription share which were
completed on 8 March 2019 (the “Subscription”). The
net proceeds from the Subscription (after deducting
the relevant expenses incurred in the Subscription)
were approximately HK$49,136,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB42,982,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include, among others, the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
employees, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
consultants of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 28 January 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date, i.e. 27 January 2021.

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the relevant class of Shares in issue from
time to time. Subject to the limit above, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all option to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) and at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit
is refreshed. The maximum number of Shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

31.

32.

& NEP)

ZERE)
BEARTBHEAE-_Z—\F+—A
B - —E—N\F+—A+-HE=
E—NEFE=ZANBZAM MBEEIL
REBACERREETRABERD0.27
7B TR A $£182,800,000M% A% 17
(BER=ZZE—-NAE=ANB xR
BEHE| RESHEHMAGHIEFHEK
NMERBEEELEZ2HBRAZ)OA
49,136,000 T(HE R H AR K
42,982,0007%) °
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— B RS EI([EikEsTEl ) 5§
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BB R E R S E) & RN - BB A%
TR R ER2EERE(EP )
AEE(BREBYIERITES )
SEEE ERSRGEHER &
B AR ERRE R AR TN B
R B2 AL FEFE AR A% R o BE AR 5T &
- ——F—A-t+/\HELEZ
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L

D) ik \
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Rz EMARR RIREBIREE R
ARBEAEMERESE DR EE
MARTTIE Z B BB ITHEINE IR
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R Z230% £ At FREEAR IR T -
IR vt 8 AR B A K fb 5t
SR P A BRI TER A T %
THRNESHE S SEER
FHEHERARARRRANERAE £
HEBHFEREREEHDHTR
10 210% ([ 51 B HERRFE ) o IOEAA
T EABEA - RIEERET SR
TEEERZEE ZBRER THT
Z &R0 BB AMERRRE ZTR
021 % /R o B H R B UL IR 5l 2 (E 1]
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B ©
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and which
shall not exceed 10 years after the date on which the
share options are granted and accepted. The exercise of
any option may be subject to a vesting schedule to be
determined by the board of directors.

The Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum
period for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. UM AEBRNSRZRS

(continued) (%)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the RN URELEE 2 BIRETE
Company (continued) (&)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to FERR I N T A A BER B sk A
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. EUN—E Y T
The following share options were outstanding under the FR - IRIBEBEREST S M ARTTERNE
Share Option Scheme during the year: fRFERNT -
2019 2018
“2-1E —T-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of

exercise price share options  exercise price  share options

ME¥ BRE MEFH RE

fIfEfE #H 18 A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—RA—H 0.65 241,180,000 0.73 143,680,000
Granted during the year FRERE - - 0.54 108,300,000
Forfeited during the year ERER - - 0.67  (10,800,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=1+—H 0.65 241,180,000 0.65 241,180,000
Nil share options were granted (2018: 108,300,000) and HE—_ZT—hhE+-_BA=+—HI=E
nil (2018: 10,800,000) share options were forfeited due B EEREERO(ZZE—N\F:
to cessation of employment of the participants during the 108,300,000) F & i i 8 [ 22 B 4%
year ended 31 December 2019. IFEBERmMHB LW ZE—N\F:

10,800,00019 ) °

migwy —s-hesg |1/ /
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2019
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 10,917,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from 10
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.

- 19,356,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from 10
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

— 3,195,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2017 with an exercise period from 10
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

— 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2018 with an exercise period from 10
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

- 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2019 with an exercise period from 10
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.

- 45,660,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

- 31,600,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,900,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.

2,375,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2018 with an exercise period from 16
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2019 with an exercise period from 16
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2020 with an exercise period from 16
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

64,980,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

43,320,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

ARG B/ERONRZRS

(&)

AARURELE ZIBIRESTE
(&)
- ZEBRER,425,00010 B
—E—RE+-At+BHEE-
TEHE-_ZT—RF+-A+~
HE—_Z—_—F+_-_A+HAH-

- ZESBERAEMI,900,0000 2R
—EBE—+FE+-A+AEBE
TESHAE-_ZE—+tF+=-A -+
AE—_Z2—_—F+_-_A+HAH-

- &EBEEE2,37500000 2R
—E-N\E+_A+SEEE-
EgAa=—E— N \F+=-A+~
AE-T-—f+-A+AAB-

—  ZEERRER1,900,00010 B A
—E-NE+=ZRA+BEE"
TEHAE-ZE-HLE+=A+
He—_Z——4%+_A+HHB-

—  ZEBEIRER1,900,00010 # A
“E-TF+-A+BERE-
TEPE—E—ETFE+ = A+~
He—_Z-_—4%+_A+HAB-

—  ZEBERERG4,980,00015 2 5
—E-N\EXATNEEE 1T
FHAE—ZE—NFNAT+NLHEHE
—E-_=FXNA+N\B-

—  ZEBERER43,320,0000E R
“E-NEFEANATILBEE 17
FHE-_ZT—AFAT+NLERE
—E-=FXA+)/\B-
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2018
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 10,917,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from 10
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.

- 19,356,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from 10
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

- 3,195,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2017 with an exercise period from 10
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

— 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2018 with an exercise period from 10
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

- 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2019 with an exercise period from 10
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.

- 45,660,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

- 31,600,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,900,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

2,320,000 of such share options will be vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.

2,375,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2018 with an exercise period from 16
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2019 with an exercise period from 16
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options will be vested on
16 December 2020 with an exercise period from 16
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

64,980,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

43,320,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

—NF+ZA=1—HILFE

32. UBRBAERNNTRZRS
(%&)
AN ARG E 2 BB
(%)

BRATERIT

2019

—E-hEF

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BRERR THEESRBT 1T H

108,300,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023
—E-N\ERAT+HLBEZZE==F~A+/\H

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E—RE+ZA+ARHEZZE=-—F+=-H+EHH

84,800,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E-REXNAZt+THNBEE=ZE=—Fx~A=1+=H

38,580,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020
—E-HE+=-AtHE=ZE=-ZEFE+=-AHhA

2018

—E-N\#F

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BRERA TEEERER TEH

108,300,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023

)\ﬂz/\ﬂ ‘f’j'L Hz—%F __/EE/\)EJ ‘f’)\ H

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E—RFt-At+RNEHEZZE=_—4F+=-A+AH

84,800,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E—RNFERNAZtTHWNBE_ZE-_—%XA=-+=H

38,580,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020

—hAF+-_A+HE—_ZE_ZTF+_-ANH
The fair value of the share options granted during the BE_Z—RAF+_A=+—HI#%F

year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$24,872,000
(equivalent to RMB20,837,000) of which the Group
recognised share-based payments of RMB1,081,000 and
RMB508,000 during the years ended 31 December 2018

EEﬂ&ﬁ#ﬁ%k%
24,872,000 L( H & W A R &
20,837,00070 ) AR AREEREZE —

A2 WA R E ARITE R BT

FES

T \ER-F-NF+=A=+—

and 2019 respectively.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 June
2016 and 16 December 2016 was HK$18,960,000
(equivalent to RMB16,204,000) and HK$3,924,000
(equivalent to RMB3,510,000) of which the Group
recognised share-based payments of RMB2,155,000 and
RMB1,131,000 during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019 respectively.

The fair value of the share options granted on
19 June 2018 was HK$17,289,000 (equivalent to
RMB14,148,000) of which the Group recognised
share-based payments of RMB11,969,000 and
RMB3,660,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 respectively.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.

As at 31 December 2019, 148,685,960 Shares may be
issued upon the exercise of all the share options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 10% of the total issued Shares as at 31
December 2019 and the date of this annual report. As
at 31 December 2019, the Company had 241,180,000
(2018: 241,180,000) share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
16.22% (2018: 18.49%) of the Shares in issue as at
that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 241,180,000
(2018: 241,180,000) additional Shares and additional
share capital and share premium of approximately
HK$18,783,000 (equivalent to RMB16,825,000) (2018:
HK$18,891,000 and equivalent to RMB16,553,000)
and approximately HK$137,170,000 (equivalent to
RMB122,874,000) (2018: HK$137,061,000 equivalent to
RMB120,093,000), before issue expenses.

32. LROBERNTIRZRE

(&)

RAT R RELE 2 BIRESTE
(4&)
RZEBE—ARFANAZ+THBERE-Z
—NFE+ZA+NBRENERED
FED R A18,960,00058 7T (FHE R A
X #16,204,0007T ) %3,924,0007% 7T
(HBERAR®3,510,0007T ) HAA
EERBE_ZT—)\ER-_ZT—IEF
+—A=1+—HILFEE D HIERA
Wfn BRI ARE2,155,0007T
M AER#1,131,0007T °

RZZE—N\FNATHLABRLHER
NF(EA17,289,00058 T (FHHE R A
R¥14,148,00070 ) HEAANEERNE
EE-NFRER_ZE—NLF+=A
=+—HIEFESRIERUARS BE
i 8 15 3k A R #511,969,0007T & A R
#3 660,0007T ©

DT AE TSR A T8 I SRR AR £ R0 15
3R AR 1 PSR B BB P T R A
A3 -

R-_ZE—hE+-_A=+—8 BRK
BB T TFREZMEBREE
1711  #5317148,685,9600% A% 15 -
HERBE-_ZE—hF+=-_RAR=+—
ARAFHRB L ILEHITRD ZL
10% R_ZE—NF+_A=+—
H XA EREFSETHES
241,180,000 ( = & — J\ & :
241,180,00017 ) i8] AR 17 {5 A B A 72 -
H % B HAE BTN £16.22% (=
T — N\F :1849%)° BIEARN AR
BFEARE BEITEZSZERARITE
B OBE AR #E 45 & B EE AN B 1T
241,180,000 ( — & — )\ £ :
241,180,0000% ) % 15 & B8 IR A K2 f%
DaB(RNKEFETRI)D AL
18,783,000 (A& M A R &
16,825,000t ( = & — N\ F:
18,891,000 ;- HHE M A R ¥
16,553,0007T ) & #7137,170,00078 7T
(FHENRAR®122,874,000L (==&
— \%E : 137,061,000/ 7 - HHER A
E#120,093,0007T)°
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

()

Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and the Subscriber on 21
June 2012, Best Mark lent 32,000,000 Shares to
the Subscriber. Upon initial recognition, the value
of such contribution amounting to approximately
RMB12,183,000 from the substantial shareholder
was accounted for as a deemed contribution in the
shareholder’s equity. The carrying amount of such
contribution from the substantial shareholder is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to the Best Mark
the right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at
a strike price of HK$1.01 and the Best Mark has
granted the Subscriber the right to require the Best
Mark to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the
same strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.
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f1%32,000,0000% o 72 4] 15 & 32
% BRATERFIENEEY
A AR #12,183,0007T R E
BmETNARBRIETE-F
BAEERFELRIERBAER
HEBEETTEHI= -

RZZT—=—%F 7 A+ B Best
I\/Iark,\ [0 E%]\ l:lT_L @-J\ WJ ;%%
( AEEREHEERE]) B

BB A [Best Markd% H LATT
ﬁ f81.018 JT # HEBest Mark
32,000,0008% B% {7 K94 F) - M Best
Mark R 3288 A% H Z5KBest Mark
LA A8 B 17 5 {2 B8 §32,000,0000%
B A BORER

RZEBE—ME+=-A++H KA
7] %EBest Marks &1+ 32,000,000
i B 10 B B R B A B & TBest
Mark - nuxaﬁ)inu\/a/ﬁ\}q*gﬁ@?‘&%q]
FERSEKRIE-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

33. RESERVES (continued)

34.

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory surplus fund

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses
of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases a production plant and premises under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these plant and
premises are negotiated for average terms of one to five
years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

33.

34.

&)

(i) ZEBHBLES
BIEFRAEEERRY  ANEEH
EFRBIKZHMTB A RZEREE
FEBRBZEN(SEBEEMA
AHEER) ME)NETESD
LhEEE A FRGAEES HE
PECHEBEIEFMER
50% A& LE  AE BB AES A H
EEREFPENB RN RAE
B HASTHRBETEERNS
THR - RN S RBALTH
MBARMESSHE -

B R B R

(R BREREREHBRIEI
BB ISR PTE LB —YISNE
Z8 - DRBES M BERKRME
3FTEE AT R ARREE I ©

(iii)

REHERH
AEMBEELBERHBELEER
B RS- LR RSN T
HEHREE A FERF-

BHEZ—-—\E+=-H=+—H 'K
SERBEITHGELCEHER TR
HifE MR R KEEE N REREN
T

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREFTT

—5R
FE_EhF(BREEMSF)

668
984

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

1,652

BERE —T-hFFEH
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REHEELHE)

(continued)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. From 1 January 2019 onward,
future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3.

35. COMMITMENTS 35.

The Group had the following commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

AEBEEREETENEBRER
M BHRE LR - B =F
—NF-A—RiE REBEENFR
EMEME e RRERAEESR

&

I

REBN2MPRE A T AR :

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Contracted for capital commitment in BERKBARRENGTA
respect of investment in subsidiaries B AR HE 169,970 185,021
Contracted for commitments in respect of: HR4LA I8 B 85T £IHIE ¢
— advertising and consultancy services — B RERRS 249 373
— construction in progress —HFEETRE - 354
— research and development contract —HEEL 300 300
— property, plant and equipment —% BB KR 3,117 9,468
3,666 10,495
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36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19") epidemic in the PRC in January 2020,
the Group's operational and financial performance are
expected to be affected by the epidemic in the first half
of 2020.

Though the Group’s factories in Fujian Province have
resumed work since 10 February 2020, the Group
expects that the COVID-19 epidemic will result in late
delivery of some products. On the other hand, due to the
continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in the US
since March 2020, the Group’s major OEM customers in
the US requested to postpone the delivery time of some
orders and the specific delivery time is still uncertain. The
Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s businesses and keeps close
contact with customers to strive for solutions.

The Group will keep continuous attention on the
situation of the COVID-19 epidemic, assess and react
actively to its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. Up to the date of issue of
the consolidated financial statements, the assessment is
still in progress.

36.

EH®REE

HR - -ZTF— AR EBREHE
T AREE(COVID-19 )& lE —E =
TEFEFEREBNEERMBERE
A e S ERIBRTE -

REASENRERENIRE S
TE-HA+HBEEL AEEEH
COVID-19% 1B E A TEMNTEE
RfFe-S—FE BRE-_T_FF
= A#BCOVID-19% B EEBIFE IR
% AEENERNEEOEMEFE
KIEB— LR ENRFERAEARER
NEENTHEE - AEE8—EHZ tﬂﬁ*
THEHRREAEEEGHTE
X FREFFYHBASZ KRG R

NEBBFEREICOVID-19ZIERNIS
H o A E I AE R PR AR B
MAREEEENTLE - BEERAH
BRETIEBH  FHEHDEETH -

BERE —T-hFFEH
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 37. MEERBEL BB 2HER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities THRAMLAEERETHAEECE
arising from financing activities, including both cash B2 RRASMIFRECET R
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEBFEEZAGEREEREERN
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future SRR REF TR AEELEER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated ERERNDEEMEEHMEEZ
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ReEnENZEEE
activities.
Short term Lease
Bills payables horrowings liabilities Total
EfEE EHRE HESR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARET T
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\E—f-H 7,090 117,000 - 124,090
Drawdown of new short term ROFEHEE
borrowings - 123,100 - 123,100
Repayments of short term borrowings  EEREEE - (117,000) - (117,000)
Repayments of bills payables EREREZE (7,090) - - (7,090)
Interest paid Biif & - (5,862) - (5,862)
Interest expenses fEFR - 5,862 - 5,862
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A=1-H - 123,100 = 123,100
Adjustment upon application of IFRS 16 [ /5 BIE B 15 3R & 8| £ 16%
BAR - - 1,211 1,211
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZ-nE-A-R(E3) - 123,100 1211 124311
Drawdown of new short term REGEaEs
borrowings - 114,200 - 114,200
Repayments of short term borrowings BB 58 A3 & - (123,100) = (123,100)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERE - - (514) (514)
Drawdown of bills payables ROENZE 12,850 - - 12,850
Interest paid Bifg (111) (5,890) (1) (6,072)
Interest expenses i 11 5,390 Il 6,072
New leases entered MEHE - - 457 457
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H 12,850 114,200 1,154 128,204
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39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the significant related party
transactions are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

REMBRRWE

—F-NFFA=t—HUFE

38. BEAXIXRS

Brir e M mR M E o s
Eﬁ?ﬂ R SHWEINT

AEBTZERABNMESINT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREFIT

Fees wWe 106 =

Other emoluments: HiBi< -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 - E%‘&?‘Ti@ﬂﬁ?ﬁ 2,109 1,968
Contributions to retirement benefits RRAE AT 24

schemes 45 30

2,154 1,998

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 26) and provision
for contingent consideration (note 29); net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

39. EXEBRER

AEEEREEN 5EBBELE
BB AR RER AR B BT
FERE TRIRES LEK@#&
AEENEBERRERE SRS TE

AEENEARARBREGBEFHE(E
RIS (M aE26) Rk A B B A (K
329)(?Dﬁffﬁi&£% EEBEY)) RA

NCIE DN AR $ (’TTEE%? T
AR RREER)

ARBEEFLFRI —RENE
BAERREH—& D ARRIES
EREEARRAREEBEAREBNE
mom%$@7§$mg%-¢%§
BB IS BITH R BE R
0 LA B 31 ﬁﬁ&%@ﬁﬁm%u¥
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at 31 December 2019 and 2018

BERETHEMTA
R-F-—NFR=_F-N\F+=-A
St-BEMEBEERTAREEN

are as follows: T :
Financial assets SREE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
At amortised cost: B
Trade receivables (note 20) FEWE ZERFR(Ha#20) 44,784 33,659
Financial assets included in prepayments,  B&&ETEMNZIE - 1RE REM
deposits and other receivables Y FEBENEREE 32,853 1,854
Pledged deposits BEEHER 3,855 -
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 4,101 21,080
85,593 56,593
Financial liabilities Ea- =Kt
2019 2018
ZBE-NE —2)\E
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BDAYE I8 8 BATE DA 8
SABRE  RAHE SABE MARE
WemaRE MENeE BE NEEEE MNeRAE ks
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities:  FE{T42BEE :
Trade and bills payables (note 24) (S E 5% R JE
SB(HH24) - 56,856 56,856 - 46,806 46,806
Financial liabilities included in BEEE RS  Hit
deposits received, other payables fEfFIEK BT ER
and accruals kA=l - 34,373 34,373 - 42,431 42,431
Lease liabilities (note 28) REAR(H228) - 1,154 1,154 - - -
Short term borrowings (note 26)  REREE (A1:726) - 114200 114,200 - 123,100 123,100
Provision for contingent KAREBREHH29)
consideration (note 29) - - - 4,769 - 4769
- 206583 206,583 4769 212,337 217,106

190

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 4. ERMITENRAFETE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and AEBRELSEMEERANTES
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value ENTREERSREBENATE
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial REZWHRAR ~EENETERME
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each ErcRBERATEFE - TRE
reporting period. The following table gives information NzEemEERERBEATEE
about how the fair values of these financial assets and EAN(LEEZAMNMERERE
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the ANEBE)RHBEE R -

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Significant
Fair value as at Fair value unobservable Valuation technique(s)
Financial liabilities 31 December 2019 hierarchy inputs Range and key input(s)
R=B-1E
tZR=t+-H EXFUER HEFERTE
tHEE MAYE NYEZR BAE #E BAE
Provision for Liabilities, Level 3 Discount rate 14.84%-14.86% Discounted Cash Flow
contingent RMB Nil (2018: 12.54%-12.72%) Approach
consideration The key inputs are set out in
note 29
JRRERR 8 £=4 BAX 14.84%-14.86% BB
AREZR (ZE-NE:1254%1272%)  FEHABHRN9
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
Level 3
B=H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETTT
Financial liabilities = N=Ni
— Provision for contingent consideration ~ — s AR (B B4 - 4,769

meny —2-nEesEg |9




192

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—F

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

41.

—NF+ZA=1—HILFE

ERMIENQATFEFEE)

FE=RMAFETENHER
Provision for
contingent
consideration
FARERE
RMB'000
ARETT
(note 29)
(Kt7£29)

As at 1 January 2019 n=
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss
during the year

As at 31 December 2019

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, lease liabilities, short
term borrowings, convertible notes and provision
for contingent consideration. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong

dollars (“HK$").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.

HEEEEEEEREEE)

ShEE LB
AEEAERZEBRR  TBEREMN
Erx(Erxl) REx(TET])HER

HERZLBERD -
TRETNR2MBNR - HATH H &

ERFIAE AEBERBATBRELE S
7T N B TTRE R )5 I8 F] BE B ) D SRR
l‘\ﬂ:_o

Increase/
(decrease) in

Increase/  the Group's
(decrease) in loss before
US$/HKS$ rate tax
AEBEBRB
Exn/BrER siFBALA S
A (FER) (F&)
% RMB’000
ARETTT
2019 —B-hEF
If US$ strengthens against RMB mETEAREAE 5 (2,129)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB AT AREHE 5 (14)
If US$ weakens against RMB WETREAREEE (5) 2,129
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARERE (5) 14
2018 —EB-N\F
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHEAREHE 5 (1,692)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB AT AREHE 5 (935)
If US$ weakens against RMB METHARERE (5) 1,692
If HK$ weakens against RMB W THARERE (5) 935

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

AREEREIL EIMNELHRRR - BE
EEERIMNERR YEREFEER
ZREPEAINE L o

BERE —T-hFFEH
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade receivables
which are assessed individually with a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

For prepayments, deposits and other receivables, the
Group makes individual assessment based on industrial
factors, historical observed default rates and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. No impairment was recognised
by the Group on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables during the current year.

The Group’s credit risk on bank balances and cash is low
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk
because all bank deposits are deposited in or contracted
with several state-owned banks with good reputation and
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. No recognition of ECL on bank balances,
restricted bank balances and cash is considered necessary.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in US (2018: US), which accounted for
91% (2018: 76%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2019.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 48%
(2018: 74%) and 97% (2018: 99%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2019

42.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—F—hF+-_H=+—HIFE

HEEEEEEEREEKE)

BRI
R=T-NE+=A=+-0 A%
B ESEL SR BTEEM A
AR B K OB
TYHRE R B R KA 51 BB

ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁpb\iﬂﬁ}zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REEERREEZERE ~EEE
BEZIKE /J\iﬁ%“fjmﬁgﬁﬁ

R Ttt/ﬂ:.ff AR EREMEER
Fr PARE R 2 A Ui (20 780 HA (5 TR R R BRAE
T8 - thoh - R B e A BIFR B 75
BEENFORRRAHEERHEE
7\ B FE W B 55 Bk SRR A 8 s AR ek B
ME’J“@L?T%%E’]/&@%% AUt

CARFEFZRR AEENE
f?ﬂ ARPNE] i

MIEMRIE e REMERFIEM
= $%@ﬁﬁ TEAZ -BEASH
RENKEBFBIELTE ARBAN
S 04 BBk AN B %8 h B AT 1S 2 RiTIE
MERETHAE- $§lﬁﬁifm
ETEM B Re REMEU K
ﬁmﬂﬁ

AEBRTEHREREZEER 7%
K - BEMESEAEEEFER
BB RITES iﬂ_EﬁA%F‘W E
FHEBREEFRKES %mf*,\
FRk BB RIT BEARIRITLE
ZBRHIIRTTA R RIS R T‘Eﬁﬁfﬂ\
B ©

AEBRMWEMES HHNEERRT
EEFEXBE(ZF-—N\F: %!)
XBEER-_FT-hF+-_A=+t—H

MEWE SERAENII%( -
—N\F :76%)°
Kilﬁ‘%qﬂ:fﬁ R 2 FE U

B H RN %EE’MS%(f = — \F:
4%)&97%(_ T — )\F : 99%) A&
SRRERAEBNERATEFRAK
EFE-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. BEEREEBERBER#E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EE R RBETE(E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRFRAEERELETEREES
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL Btz emEERE 2 EERR
assessment:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\E
12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
128 B2
AHEEER BEREE BERE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETRT ARETRL

Financial assets at amortised

costs
RBHERATECSREE
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 44,822 33,787
from sales of goods (not credit impaired)
HEEMEACZEKESER 2BEBEEEAR
(BEEERE)
Credit-impaired 7,948 52,770 8,246 42,033
FERE
Bank balances and cash 12m ECL 4,101 21,080
RITEHRERE REARHEEERE
Credit-impaired = 4,101 - 21,080
EERE
Financial assets included in 12m ECL 32,853 1,854
prepayments, deposits and (not credit impaired)

other receivables
BEERMNFE -ReEREMEKR 2@ARHEEEE
FENEREE (BEEERE)
Credit-impaired - 32,853 - 1,854
EERE

muwy —z-nsss 195
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. BEEREEBERBER(#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERRBETE(E)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the ERAEBEERREEREN—& 5
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for REBEFERAEEARKRTEHEER
its customers in relation to its sales of goods operation mEBEBBENEPRE REAAZSE
because these customers consist of a large number of XFPBZEAEBARRRSEREA/NE
small customers with common risk characteristics that BRAER - M FEREFEER PR
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all BE DR BIHARIE A RE /7 o

amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TREHERBEH T ERABEWE
that has been recognised trade receivables under the SERZEHEREEBE E8 -

simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
ZHATEH ZHATEH
FEEE BEEEFE
(E|EERE) (EERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARET T

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZT—tHF
under IAS 39 +=B=1+—HE#E
ERR & s 2E Al
$£39%% - 2,689 2,689
Adjustment upon application of 53 & Ff BB B 75 R 45 2
IFRS 9 RIZEoSt e A% - 1,967 1,967

As at 1 January 2018 - As R=F-—N\F
restated —HA—H-&&E5| - 4,656 4,656
— Impairment losses recognised — B MR E 18 128 3,590 3,718

At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F

1 January 2019 +T=ZA=+—HR

—E2-h&E—H—H 128 8,246 8,374
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBEEEERE (43) 43 -
— Impairment losses recognised — & ERBIEE B 38 44 82
— Impairment losses reversed — REE B RE (85) (518) (603)
— Exchange adjustments —[ERFE - 133 133
At 31 December 2019 R-B-I#F

+=—H=+—H 38 7,948 7,986
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over one year past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The short term borrowings, cash and short
term deposits are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income
and expenses are credited/charged to the statement of
profit or loss as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

42. BHEREZEEERBKRE)

EE R RO E R ()

WA ERBERNESARREENER
B B g [ 3RIR B9 # R A A (A fE A
BRRIEAWERF KEWES
FRERCAHEE—F UREER
%) REERMERKE PR

R 2= B
AEBEHE RN HISH SRR ER
EAREERY SR EEERR -

REBTFTHEERE T EEENE
BEMXEAR SHEE RELE
HATE SR B SR A A BR - M A& E H
B FRBRARTHRIBEERANE
ERECELETIAER k-

TRETMAA LS ERETE .
A BB A IR (BT B B
FB) SR 2 A5 A 48 B i B
o

Increase in

Increase in loss before
interest rate tax
R B Al

FI 2= 38 N BB N
(basis points) RMB’000

(&) AR®Tn

2019 —E-hEF
2018 —E—N\F

100 1,142
100 1,231

BERE —T-hFFEH
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings, internal resources
and external facilities provided by an independent
third party as significant sources of liquidity. As at 31
December 2019, the Group has fully utilised the short-
term bank loan facilities (2018: available unutilised
short-term bank loan facilities of approximately
RMB9,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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42. BEEREEBERBER(#)

ERSHECRERERETHEH NEBEE
BEXHBEEBRREABRNAKE
LERMFReEMASEEYKTE X
RERERERERINTE - B
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LS E
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. B EREEEERBE#E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRAR(E)
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the 2R WAERAZE A K-
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve E'Jﬂiﬂﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ?—ﬁﬁu He

at the end of the reporting period.

2019
—E-NF
Less than 12
months 1to5 Undiscounted Carrying
or on demand years cash flow amount
R
TR AER
ARERK -21f ReRE REE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AR®TR AR¥TR AE®TR
Non-derivative financial liabilties: ETELRAR:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) ER8SENRERRE
(Hiit24) 56,856 - 56,856 56,856
Financial liabilities included in deposits received, 22 k4 » £ B 208 R =t
other payables and accruals ERNERER 34,313 - 34313 34373
Lease liabilties BEAfR 648 588 1,36 1,154
Short term borrowings RHEE 116,706 - 116,706 114,200
208,583 588 209,171 206,583
2018
—T-N\F
Less than 12
months Tto5 Undiscounted
oron demand years cashflow  Carrying amount
+2fiA AR
FREKE —E0F Heng M
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Non-derivative financial liabilties: FEeRak:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) EfESENRENTE
(Hiit24) 46,806 - 46,806 46,306
Financial liabilities included in deposits received, B 2R Wiiks » £ e (4 208 Rzt
other payables and accruals BRRZRAE 42,431 = 42,431 42,431
Short term borrowings RS 125,930 - 125,930 123,100
Provision for contingent consideration dARERE 3,078 3077 6,155 4,769
218,245 3,077 21322 217,106

BERE —T-hFFEH
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of
the Group’s products include rubber and plastics. The
Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these
raw materials which are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in
the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the
Group's financial performance. The Group historically has
not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the potential commodity price changes.
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42. BEEREEBERBER(#)

REBESEE(E)

BN R BB A BN 2 A RE
EMEMEET - st A LA IEITE S B
BEMNSETHNETAHBESSH

7 B A% LB
AEESEEMmN I BREMHABER
BN IERE - AN B bR 2 Bk N R s
KERSZERMHAEBRKBOER
@ o R FHERR KB AT e AR B HY
MBERBRBETNEE ANEEBEL
BRI an T4 T ELAS Al g8
HIRM T mERAE o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—F—NF+=-A=1+—HIFZF

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

43. AR Tz B BARR R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —EF—N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 2% AR®T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Intangible assets BEEE 61,000 288,000
Interest in subsidiaries ARG o) Fa 912,570 902,882
Right-of-use assets EREEE 248 -
973,818 1,190,882
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFUE - RHe REMIE
receivables & eE] 310 331
Cash and bank balances R e MIRTT4E &R 69 51
379 382
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Deposits received, other payables and B Uiks « H b et
accruals FUE N fEETE 1,965 32,791
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B FIE 1,112,580 1,112,580
Lease liabilities HEBE 233 -
1,114,778 1,145,371
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB ETEEHE (1,114,399) (1,144,989)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERAHEE
LIABILITIES (140,581) 45,893
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 =
Provision for contingent consideration st RSB B - 2,312
20 2,312
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BB EETE (140,601) 43,581
EQUITY Ea
Share capital RN 99,310 86,758
Reserves s i (239,911) (43,177)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/TOTAL (BEXREH) EREE8E
EQUITY (140,601) 43,581

Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
board of directors on 30 March 2020 and signed on its

behalf by:

ZHENG Jingdong
B=R
Director

EF

ApaEEeRn _—_E-_FTF=H=+
BHLERRETZ  WHATALER
REE:

LEUNG Tsz Chung
RFH
Director

EF

BigRE —Z-hFFH
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43, KD T 2B BEMRRT(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note Kt
i) Reserves of the Company i) PN
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RHEE Ba2% GARERE  BRERS it ER &t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R=F-\5-F-H 416,325 395,026 524 28,284 (790,450) 49,709
Conversion of convertible notes RANEARER 147,490 - - - - 147,490
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FREBERZERXEE

for the year - - - - (255,581) (255,581)
Forfeiture of share options R E = = = (1,689) 1689 -
Equity-settled share-based payments RS S AR AR

fiat - - - 15,205 - 15,205

At 31 December 2018 and R=B-N+ZB=t-HR

1 January 2019 “E-7%5-B-H 563,815 395,026 524 41,800 (1,044,342) (43177)

Loss and total comprehensive expense EREER2AHXEE

for the year - - - - (232,654) (232,654)
Completion of subscription of new =B
Shares 30,621 - - - - 30,621
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ HRELELRAAERH
{E - - - 5,299 - 5,299
At 31 December 2019 R=E-AE+ZA=1-A 594,436 395,026 524 47,099 (1,276,996) (239,911)
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

Place of registration/
incorporation and Issued and fully

44, APTETEMWE R RNFE

Percentage of equity

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B2 /8MAIR  CRAREH , )
£ mEws BREX AAREGEREADL TEXH
Direct Indirect
E# &

BAOQF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers,
provision of
management services
and investment holding

BEMERARAA B 10,0007 100 - ERNE RUERRE
REEER

Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

("Quanzhou Baofeng") slippers, sandals and
casual footwear

FMEBEXERAT t AE® - 100 RERHEERE RER

(TRMEE]) 544,229,0007C NG

Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant

BERH (BR)ERAH &k 10,0007 7T 100 - ERE¥

Astute Sino Developments Limited ~ BVI US$100 100 - Dormant

BERRARAA ABRARS 100%7T 100 - ERE%

2D Material Technology Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Investment holding

Company Limited
EMAHERBRAT i 100757 100 - REARK
2D Material Technology Limited BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
ABRAMS 100%7T 100 - EBEEX
Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB22,051,000 - 100 Manufacture and

Technology Company Limited
("Xinfeng 2D")*

BREME_GMHMBERAA  #E ARE
([He_t])~ 22,051,000
Fujian Caidian Keji Company Limited PRC RMB1,150,000

("Caidian Keji")*
BRERENRAREELA th ARE
(TER BRI ) * 1,150,0007C

* Quanzhou Baofeng and Xinfeng 2D are registered as
companies with limited liability (solely invested by Taiwan,
Hong Kong or Macau legal person) under the law of the
PRC.

# Caidian Keji is registered as company with limited liability
(wholly invested by a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise)
under the law of the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 December 2019 and 2018 or at any time during the
year.

A —
N
)\_

sale of Graphene-
based Products and
investment holding

100 RERHERERERR
RERR

100  Sale of Graphene-based
Products
100 HERERREM

SN e N IE — M BB E P BDA
RAMMWBEREERA (BBRE
ANBE) e

BRER R ARETEAEEMNAE
[ﬁg)ﬁ{?&ﬁ? (OB ELFRIEANT

E-AFR=F—N\F+A

=t —BARANFEIMERE SEH

B

ABTEMEBES

BERE —T-hFFEH
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45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 45
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2020.
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